BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ —
MEETING

Commissioners' Agenda

The Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) is comprised of the three elected County
Commissioners: Ernie Moser (District 1), Jeff Hough (District 2, Chair), and Ken Bullock (District
3). The BOCC generally meets twice weekly: Tuesdays & Thursdays at 9:00 a.m. Unless otherwise
noted, meetings are generally held in the Commissioner's Chambers at 624 E Center, Room 212,
Pocatello, Idaho. During these public meetings, the BOCC may approve contracts, expend funds,
hear testimony, make decisions on land use cases, and take care of other County matters.

Times are subject to change within 15 minutes of the stated time.

Thursday, July 3, 2025
9:00 AM Business Meeting (action items)

Agenda:

e Steven Liechty, Rocky Mountain Power, annual business update

e Scott Crowther, Business Manager and Events Director, seeking approval of and signature

_____________________________________________________________

__________________________________

e Matthew K. Phillips, Human Resources and Risk Management, requesting approval of and

.....................




Claims Agenda:

Board of Ambulance District: Invoices and Commissioner Report
Board of Commissioners: Invoices, Commissioners Reports, and Credit Applications

Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under
Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following
adjournment of Executive Session

Payroll Report

Alcohol Licenses and Permits

Certificate of Residency Approval

Mileage Reimbursement Requests

Technology Request Form

Independence Day Vendor Agreements
Memorandum Authorization for Accounts Payable

Cardholder User Agreement and Authorization

10:00 AM Board of Equalization and Administrative BOE Reviews throughout the day as needed
(action items)

1:00 PM Board of Equalization and Administrative BOE Reviews throughout the day as needed
(action items)




Bannock County COMMISSIONERS
eriter. Pocatello, 1) 84201

Phone: (208) 24

SV bt

o ¢ Fax:(208) 237304

Ist District 2uid Distrect

CONCERNS/ISSUES REQUEST FORM

Once you have filled out this form, you can email the completed form to
commission@bannockeounty.us; fax it to 208-236-7363; or send it by mail to: Bannock
County Commissioners, 624 E. Center St., Room 101, Pocatello, ID 83201. Please be sure to
include any supporting documents. If you have any questions, feel free to call 208-236-7210.

Name: Phone/Email:

Steven Liechty 801-678-1 428!steven.liecha

Concern/issue/question:

Rocky Mountain Power Business Update

Suggested solution?
NA

Please include any supporting documents with your Concerns/Issues Request Form.

Commission Office Only:

Date:ﬁ 2 |2—(5 Department:

THTE

Ernie Moser  Jurr Houcn  Ken BurLock

Commissiong Conmissione {4

OICT

Ivd District



Bannock County COMMISSIONERS
624 E. Center, Pocatello, ID 83201
Phone: (208) 256-7210 ® Fax: (208) 232-74963

ErniE Moser  Jerr Houven  Ken Buirock
Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner

Ist District 2nd District 3rd District

Business Meeting Agenda Request Form

The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are generally held an Tuesday at 9:15 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the
Bannock County Courthouse, Room 212; 624 E Center Pocatello, Idaho or as naticed 48 hours prior to the meeting

at https://bannockcounty.us/commissioners/. The Cornmissioners also hold meetings throughout the week as coordinated with the Commissioners’
staff. Agenda times are subject to change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in public
meetings should contact the Commissioners’ Office at 208-236-7210, three to five working days befare the meeting.

Requestor Name:

Teri Jones

Department:
Event Center

Requestor Email:
tjones@bannockcounty.us

Item(s) to be considered:

Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier Event Rental Agreement approval

Date of meeting being requested: Time requested:
07/03/2025 5 Minutes

Does the request involve a contract, agreement, external funding, or award acceptance?

Agreement
Contract/Agreement Begin Date: Contract/Agreement End Date:
07/25/2025 07/25/2025

List of additional attendees:
Scott Crowther, Chaney Nielsen, Teri Jones, Lynette Smith



Bannock County Event Center Rental Agreement

This Rental Agreement is made by and between Bannock County, a political subdivision
of the State of Idaho, (hereinafter referred to as “BANNOCK COUNTY”) and Mike
Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier Event.

THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. NAME OF EVENT: Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier Event

2. DATE(S) OF EVENT: The above referenced Event is held once per year. The
Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier event to be held on July 25, 2025.

3. EEES: Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall pay BANNOCK COUNTY a
fee of $600.00 for the use of the Grandstands, Upper Arena, and tractor. This fee
includes allowing (1) outside vendor access and use of the facility.

4. PAYMENT: The entire balance owing shall be paid to BANNOCK COUNTY at
least seven (7) days prior to the scheduled Event.

5. FACILITIES: Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall have exclusive access
and use of the following facilities at the Event Center: Bannock County's Upper
Arena, Bannock County’'s Grandstands, Bannock County’s announcer’s booth,
Bannock County's PA system, Bannock County’s ticket booth, and Bannock
County's tractor. Nothing contained herein shall contemplate the use or control of
areas and/or structures yet to be developed or erected.

a. RV SITE: BANNOCK COUNTY will receive all the revenue from the old
and new RV park. Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifiers shall be
responsible for complying with applicable state, local, and federal laws or
regulations. BANNOCK COUNTY will unlock power boxes and allow
access to water supply for use during this Event. Mike Johnson Vegas
Tuffest Qualifier's shall notify the Event Center staff of any maintenance
needs as they may arise.

b. HORSE STALLS: BANNOCK COUNTY shall be responsible for the
collection of any rent/fee they deem proper for use of the Horse Stalls; which
agreement shall be solely between BANNOCK COUNTY and the user.
Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall be responsible for complying
with applicable state, local, and federal laws or regulations. BANNOCK
COUNTY shall be responsible for scheduling and cleaning the stalls.
BANNOCK COUNTY will ensure the stalls are functional and in good repair
prior to the Event.

Page1of 5



6. VENDORS: Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's recognize BANNOCK
COUNTY'S right to charge fees for outside Vendors. |n consideration of waiving
this right, Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's is paying a fee to Bannock
County with terms contained in Paragraph 3 of this Agreement. Mike Johnson
Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall be responsible for complying with applicable state,
local, and federal laws or regulations.

7. CONCESSIONS: Concessions located at the Bannock County Event Center will
be maintained by BANNOCK COUNTY’S staff. BANNOCK COUNTY will receive
100% of concession sales AFTER costs of operation, food, etc. are covered.

8. FOOD TRUCKS/VENDORS: Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's will be
allowed to have one (1) food truck/vendor. Food truck/vendor will be required to
have all certified inspections BEFORE entering onto the property of Bannock
County, this includes but is not limited to a fire inspection, an electrical inspection,
and a Food Safety certification provided from Southeastern Idaho Public Health.
Food truck/vendor will be responsible for all costs regarding inspections and will
report said documents and fees to the BANNOCK COUNTY'S staff BEFORE the
event. NOTE: Overnight camping for food truck/vendor will be permitted in RV
park. Standard rates will apply. Food truck/vendor will not be allowed to park on
BANNOCK COUNTY grass areas, but only designated areas approved by the
BANNOCK COUNTY’S staff.

9. SPONSORSHIPS: BANNOCK COUNTY recognizes the right of Mike Johnson
Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's to obtain and display Sponsorships for this Event. No
discriminatory, vulgar or offensive advertising of any kind shall be permitted on
Bannock County property. Additionally, BANNOCK COUNTY has current and
ongoing independent sponsorships displayed in certain areas at the Facilities to
be used. Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier’s shall in no way obstruct or hinder
from view, any sponsorships BANNOCK COUNTY may currently have displayed
at the time of the Event.

10. EQUIPMENT USE: BANNOCK COUNTY shall provide Mike Johnson Vegas
Tuffest Qualifier's a County tractor to work the arena during the performances.
Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall provide a tractor driver to use the
County tractor during these times. Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall
sign a County provided waiver prior to any use of the tractor. Mike Johnson Vegas
Tuffest Qualifier's is responsible for providing a qualified, experienced tractor
driver, and will represent the same upon signing the waiver. No other BANNOCK
COUNTY equipment shall be used by Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier’s, its
agents, officers, employees, volunteers or patrons without the express written
permission of BANNOCK COUNTY, along with a signed waiver.

Page 2 of 5



11.MISCELLANEQUS TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

a. Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifiers are responsible for and shall pay to
repair all damage caused by its employees, volunteers, agents, participants
or invitees to any fixtures, equipment, facilities, and /or grounds as a result
of use.

b. Use of the Facilities shall be in accord with applicable state, local and
federal laws and regulations.

c. Approval must be obtained for the erection of buildings, tents, enclosures,
structures, signs outdoor; no nails, paint or anything to walls; no tape on
concrete floors.

d. All temporary structures, forms, booths, etc., shall be removed within 24
hours of Event.

e. Security is the responsibility of Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's at
its own expense as is deemed necessary for protection of valuable displays
and buildings during the Event, day and night.

12.INSURANCE: Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall provide a Certificate
of Liability Insurance naming BANNOCK COUNTY and agents as additionally
insured in a $1,000,000 combined single limit policy, which shall be delivered to
the Bannock County Event Center Office ten (10) days prior to the Event.

13.HAZARDOUS ACTIVITY: Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's recognize this
Event has activities which carry inherent risk or injury, property destruction or
death. As such, Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall obtain waivers
and/or releases of liability from any and all participants in the activities. Said
waivers shall contain, at a minimum, language contained Paragraph 13(a). Said
waivers are subject to the approval of BANNOCK COUNTY prior to use of the
Facilities. Copies of signed waivers shall be provided to BANNOCK COUNTY
upon request. This requirement does not, in any way, abrogate the requirement
for indemnification contained herein, abrogate the invocation of sovereign
immunity herein, eliminate the requirement by the County for proof of sufficient
insurance, nor abrogate any defenses or immunities provided by law.

a. Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's shall have participants sign a
release and discharge of Bannock County, its elected and appointed
officials, and employees and agents from all actions, causes of action,
damages, claims or demands for all known or unknown personal injuries,
property damage or death resulting from or arising out of any participation
in the above described activity or event.

14. WARRANTIES: There are no express or implied warranties provided by
BANNOCK COUNTY. Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's, in executing this

Page3 of 5



agreement, is relying upon its own judgement, information, and inspection of the
property.

15.ENTRY BY BANNOCK COUNTY: BANNOCK COUNTY shall have the right to

enter the Facilities at any time to examine the same and determine proper use and
compliance with this Agreement.

16. ASSIGNMENT OR SUBLETTING PROHIBITED: Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest

Qualifier's shall not assign this rental agreement nor sublet the whole or any part
thereof without the written consent of BANNOCK COUNTY.

17. TERMINATION: This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party,

if the other party materially breaches any of its representations, warranties or
obligations under this Agreement. In the event of such breach, and prior to
terminating, the party alleging any breach must notify the other party, in writing,
and state the nature of the breach, giving the breaching party an opportunity to
cure. The time-period for the opportunity to cure shall be reasonable given the
nature and timing of the alleged breach. Except as may be otherwise provided in
this Agreement, such breach by either party will result in the other party being
responsible to reimburse the non-defaulting party for all costs incurred directly as
a result of the breach of this Agreement, and shall be subject to such damages as
may be allowed by law including all attorneys’ fees and costs of enforcing this
Agreement.

18.GOOD FAITH: BANNOCK COUNTY and Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's

shall continue to engage in good-faith communication and negotiation during the
term of this agreement to help keep costs low for use by Mike Johnson Vegas
Tuffest Qualifier's, while also contemplating the actual costs to BANNOCK
COUNTY.

19.ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This is the entire agreement of the parties and can only

be modified or amended in writing by the parties.

20.ATTORNEY FEES: If action is brought to enforce the terms or provisions of this

21

lease or to enforce forfeiture for default or to collect damages for breach, the
prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to recover from the losing party
reasonable attorney fees together with costs authorized by law.

.NOTICES: Any notice required under this Agreement may be served upon

BANNOCK COUNTY by hand delivery or USPS First-Class Mail, to Bannock
County Event Center Office at 10588 Fairgrounds Road, Pocatello, ID 83201, and
any notice may be served upon Mike Johnson Vegas Tuffest Qualifier's by hand
delivery or USPS First-Class Mail to Lynette Smith, 342 Smith Lane, Montpelier,
ID 83254. Service of a notice by US Mail shall be deemed complete upon the date

Page 4of5



of the postmark by US Mail. Either party may change the address for services of
notice by written notice to the other party.

DATED this 374 day of {ul |, 2025.
BANNOCK COUNTY

By: Date

BANNOCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Date [ /2) '}'ZO 25

Jeff Hough, Chairman

Date | / B l 2025

Ernie Moser, Commissioner

pate 132025

Ken Bullock, Commissioner

MIKE JOHNSON VEGAS TUFFEST QUALIFIER EVENT

Lynette Smith, Secretary

Page5o0of 5



Bannock County COMMISSIONERS
62,1 E. Center, Pocatello, ID 83201
Phone: (208) 256-7210 * Fax: (208) 232-75063

Ernie Moser  Jerr Houen  Ken BurLock
Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner

Ist District 2nd District 3rd District

Business Meeting Agenda Request Form

The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are generally held on Tuesday at 9:15 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the
Bannock County Caurthouse, Room 212; 624 E Center Pocatello, Idaho or as noticed 48 hours prior to the meeting

at https://bannockcounty.us/commissioners/. The Commissioners also hold meetings throughout the week as coordinated with the Commissioners’

staff. Agenda times are subject to change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in public

meetings should contact the Commussioners’ Office at 208-236-7210, three to five working days befare the meeting.

Requestor Name:

Teri Jones

Department:
Event Center

Requestor Email:
tjones@bannockcounty.us

Item(s) to be considered:

Request approval of a fee waiver for Nason House of Hope Family Fun Night.

Date of meeting being requested: Time requested:
07/03/2025 5 Minutes

Does the request involve a contract, agreement, external funding, or award acceptance?
Contract

Contract/Agreement Begin Date: Contract/Agreement End Date:
08/16/2025 08/16/2025

List of additional attendees:

Scott Crowther, Chaney Nielsen, Teri Jones, Guy Nason



office Hours: Monday thru Friday 8:00 a.m. 1o

Payment Recelved:
5:00 p.m,, Closed Weekends and Holldays insurance Received:
Mailing Address: 10588 Fairgrounds Road, Permits Recelved:
Pocatello, Idaho 83201 501.{c} Received:
Emall: eventcenter@bannockcounty.us Reclesk Outlook Board
Phone: 208-247-1340 Spreadsheet  Reservation Listing

EVENT CENTER, WELLNESS COMPLEX AND FAIRGROUNDS CONTRACT

This is a request for facility reservation. Please complete all information. Incomplete information will result in a delay in
the revlew of your contract. The information is requested to assist In the review and consideration of your raquest to rent
a County facility. Historlcal users (using thelr ariginal dates) have first priority. All other requests are on a first come — first
served hasls,

APPLICATION INFORMATION

*  Company/Origination Name: {event host) Nason House of Hope Inc.
»  Contact Name: (who will sign the contract) Guy Nason Title: CEO - Founder
+  Mailing Address: 772 Fir st

*  Clty: Pocatello State: __ |daho Zip Code: _ 83201
s Cell Phone: 208-646-8061 Email: guy@nasonhouseofhope.org
EVENT INFORMATION

Mystie. (qardens
* EventName:_Nason House of Hope Family Fun Night _ Area Requested: Pavillion-$i2-and-Championshipfields
+  Event Description: Please see page 6 at bottom of application

+  EBventDate(s); _August 16, 2025 Estimated Number of Attendees: 100-400

+  EventStartTime: _12pm EventEnd Time: 7pm

+  Additional Set-Up or Tear Down Days (if needed): _2 hours before and after

+  Paid Admission Event: YES NO X Cost Event Open to the Public: YES__X_ NO

« 50{cHB):YES _X___ NO ___ Non-Profit Name: _Nason House of Hope inc Tax ID #: __93-2833478

* Wil Alcohaol Be Served/Consumed? YES NO X (if yes, county permit {$20) must be provided and

prasent at event)
THE COUNTY SHALL:

Permit the Applicant to occupy the space as written ahove, to prepare buildings or erect temporary hooths, which Applicant
may use during the rental periods.

Permit the Applicant to display, demonstrate, sell, solicit or operate thelr business with the limits of their lease,

Use reasonable safeguards against fire, theft, and accidents, but does not assume any liablity for damages to goods or
property of the Applicant from fire, theft, water or storm, orany lfability for accidents to personsor property caused under,
or by virtue of the apparitions of Lessee under thls contract.

Have a lien upon any and all property stored, used or located upon the leased space, or elsewhere upon the falrgrounds
by the Lessee for any and all damages sustained hy the breach of this contract or otherwise caused by the Applicant, and
shail have the right to restrain such property or any part of It without process of law, and may appropriateany or ali such
as fts own to satlsfy and such claim.

FY22 Fees Adopted by R.S. No. 2021-90



Reserve the right to all food concession, unless otherwise permitted, [fadditonal vendorsare permitted menu mustnot
compete with menu of fixed slta.

THE APPLICANT SHALL:
Obtain approval for erection of bulldings, tents, enclosures, structures and signs eutdoor from County.
Not nail, drill, paint, or do anything to change appearance of the walls. Do not use tape on concrete,

Remaove all temporary structures, forms, booths, ete. within twenty-four {24) hours after termination of lease. Items left
after that time become the property of the County, to make such disposition as they shall see fit,

Not do any additional electrical wiring without permission of County.

Not permit any ale, beer or intoxicating liquor of any kind to be consumed by the Applicant, his employees, agents or guests
without proper permit.

Collect fees for the RV rental spaces at $35.00/$45.00 per space, per day and turn the rental fees collected, into the office
at the conclusion of the event,

Comply fully with all laws and ordinances of the Bannock County Fire Protection District #1,

Agrees to furnish secutity at its own expense as is deemed necessary for protection of valuable displays and buildings
during the event day and night,

Applicant agress fo furnish the County a Certificate of Insurance naming Bannock County and agents asadditionally insured
in a $ 1,000,000.00 combined single limit policy, such policy heing delivered to Event Center Office ten {10) days prior to
mave in time,

Applicant shall provide a security deposht as Indicated on the fee schedule, payabie when reservation for facifity is taken
and contract sighed. Payment will be held as a security binding. Deposit will be refunded if notification of cancellation is
received thirty (30} days prior to event or upan final inspection of facilities, provided there has been no damage and facility
Is teturnad in same condition as received., (Clean)

The Lessee will pay the building/grounds rental fees thirty (30) days pricr to the event {unless other arrangements are

made prior to the event} In the amount of: $ 240 (see attached page for fee schedule).
j Ce WOIVES BE50 00
Please male checks payable to — Bann ek count alrgrounds. Sales tax shall be collected as per ldaho Sales Tax

Commlssion rules,

Bannock County Commissioners BANNOCK COUNTY

Date

Jeff Hough, Chairman

Data By: Date

Ernte Moser, Commissioner

Date

Ken Bullock, Commissioner

FY22 Fees Adopted by RS, No. 2023-30



A. The terms of this contract shall commence and be binding unon the parties whet the last signature §s affixed to
this contract, and final approval and granting of the application Is made hy the Bannock County Commissloners. No use of
County facilities or grounds shall take place in the absence of approval. The terms of this contract shall remain in full force
and effect untif all obligations are fully performed or I is terminated as provided herein.

B. A fee as set by the Bannock County Commissloners, including but not [imited to additional security, shall be paid
by Applicant for the use of facllities and/or grounds. [f walver or reduction of fees has heen requested, this must be
approved by the Bannock County Commissloners and Applicant must comply with such terms set by the Board.

C. Applicant shall use only those parts of the facilities and/ar grounds applied for and essential for the use,
Applicant's use of facilities and grounds shall occur only with the agreement and acquiescence of the Bannock County
Commissloners and take place in such a manner as shall not Interfere with the use of building and grounds by the County
or other users,

D, Appllcant Is responsible for and shall pay to repair all damage caused by its employees, volunteers, agents,
participants ot invitees to any fixtures, equipment, facilities and/or grounds as a tesult of the use,

E. Appllcant shall clean, if necessary, ali areas of any facllities and/or grounds which are used pursuant to this
Agreement and shall leave the building{s} and/or grounds in the state It was prior tothe commencement of the use. Failure
of Applicant to clean areas of the bulldings and/orgrounds to the satisfaction of the County shall result in an assessment
of casts or foss of deposit to Applicant far any necessary cleaning. The County reserves the right to request and receive an
appropriate security and or cleaning deposit from Applicant if deemed necessary. Costsforany repairs or cleaning required
may be deducted from said deposit.

E. Applicant agrees that the use of County bulldings and grounds shall be in accord with any applicable state, local or
federal law or regulation,

G. Applicant agrees that In the event any hazardous or potentially hazardous activities are contemplated in
Applicant's use of the facllities; the Applicant shall obtain waivers and/or releases of liabllity from any and all participants
It the activities. Sald waivers shall contain, at a minimum, the following language in paragraph G(I}. Sakd walvers are
subject to the approval of the County prior to use of the facilities. Coples of all signed walvers shall be provided to the
County upon request, This requirement does not, in any way, abrogate the requirement for indemnification herein,
abrogate the Invocation of sovereigh immunity herein, eliminate any requiremant impaosed by the County for proof of
sufficient insurance, nor modify or abrogate any defanses or Immunities provided by law. Hazardous activities include, but
are nat fimited to any sport or activity whether Involving animals or equipment which carrles an inherent risk or injury,
propetty destruction or death. The Applicant agrees that decisions by the County or County staff to require or not to
require the execution or submission of waivers do not abrogate any immunities or defenses provided by faw. The County
staff has complete discretion In the decision to require or not reguire the execution and submission of waivers In
connection with any event,

G.{1) Applicant shall have participants sign a release and discharge of Bannock County, its elected and appointed
officials, and employees and agents from all actions, causes of action, damages, claims or demands for all known or
unknown persenal injurles, property damage or death resulting from or arising out of my participation in the above
described activity or events.

H. Maintenance, Bannock County agrees that regular maintenance of the grounds, parking lots and buildings will be
the responsibility of the County.

I. Default. Each and every term and condition here of shall be deemed to be a material element of the Agreement,
In the event either party should fail or refuse to perform according to the terms of this Agreement, such party may be
declared in default thereof.

J.  Independent Entitias, County and Applicantare Independent entities and their employees, volunteers, participants
or invitees are not to be considered agents or employees of the other, Actions performed by Applicant pursuant to this
contract are those of an Independent agent and not those of an employee of the County.

K. Entire Agreement. This contract, with any properly executed addendums, represents the entire and integrated
agreament and understanding between the parties and supersede all prior negotiations, statements, representations and
agreements, whether written or oral,

FY22 Fees Adopted by R.S. No. 2021-90



L. Assignment. Neitherthis contract, norany rights ar obligations hereunder shall he assigned or delegated by a party
without the prior written consent of the other party.

M. Modification. This Application and Agreement shall be modified only by a written agreement, duly executed by
all parties hereto,

N. Invalidity. The parties mutually 1mderstand and agree this contract shall be governed by and interpreted pursuant
tothe laws of the State of Idaho, Ifany provision of this contract Is held Invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent
jurisdiction, ot if the County is aclvised of any such actual or potential invalidity or unenforceahility, such holding or advice
shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. It is the express intent of the parties that the
provisions of this contract are fully severable,

0. Venue. If any dispute arises hetween the parties fram or concernlng this contract or the subject matter hereof
any suit or proceeding at law or Inaquity shall be brought in the District Court of the State of Idaho, County of Banhock,
Nathing in this clause shall be interpreted or construed to waive the County's assertion of governmental Immunity,

P. Contingencies. Applicant certifies and warrants no gralultdes, kick-backs or contingency fees were paid in
connection with this contract, nor were any fees, commissions, gifts or other canslderations made contingent upon the
award of this contract.

Q. Discrimination. All parties agree they will not discriminate against any person who performs work under the terms
and conditions of this contract because of race, color, gender, cread, handicapping conditions or national origin.

R. ADA Compliance. All parties agree they will not discriminate against a gualified individual with disabltity, pursuant
ta law as set forth in the Americans with Disabllities Act, P.L. 101-336, 42 U,S.C. § 12104, et seq., and/or any properly
promulgated rules and regulations relating thereto.

S. Governmental Immunity. The Bannock County Commissloners and Bannack County do not waive them
governmentalimmunity provided by any law by entering into and/orgranting this contractand the County fully retains all
immunities and defenses pravided by law with regard to any action based uponthis Agreement, Further; the Countyand
its elacted and ap- polnted officials do not waivethelr governmantalimmunity under contract, tort or any other applicable
theoty of faw by entering Into or granting this contract,

T. Force Majeure, Neither party shall be liable to perform under this contract if such fallure arises out of causes
bevond control, and without the fault or the negligence of said party. Such causes may include, but are not restricted to,
Acts of God or the public enemy, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantinerestrictions, freight embargoes and unusually severe
weather, Inevery case, however, a failure to perform must be beyond the controland without the fault or the negligence
of said party.

U. Nofices. Al notices required and permitted under this contract shall be deemed to have been given, if and when
deposited in the U.S, Mall, praperly stamped and addressed to the address listed herein, or when personally, delivered to
such party. A party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving written notice to the other party.

V. Indemnification. Tethe fullest exient permitted by law, Applicant agrees to indemnify and hold Harmless Bannodk
County and its elected and appolnted officials, employees and volunteers from any and all claims, damages, losses and
expanses, including reasonakle attorney's fees, for injuries, illness, death, property damage, claims, penalties, actions,
demands or expenses arising from or In connection with this contract. [n granting this contract, Bannock County may, in
its sole discreticn, require Applicant to shaw proof of insurance sufficient to cover Applicant's obligations pursuant to this
clause. No use of bulldings or grounds may commenge until Bannock County Risk Management or County Legal Counsel
has reviewed and approved the insurance coverage obtalned/provided by Applicant if so required.

W. Third Party Beneficiary, The parties do notintend to create In any other individual or entity the status of third-
party beneficlary and this Application and Agreement shall not be canstrued so as to create such status. The rights, duties
ahd obligations containad in this contract shail operate only between the parties to this contract and shall inure solely to
the benefit of the parties to this contract. The parties to this contractintend and expressiy agree that only parties’ signatory
to thls contract shall have any legal or equitable right to seek Lo enforce this contract, to seek any remedy arising out of a
party’s performance or failure to perform any term or condition of It, or to bring action for its breach. This provisionis nat
Intended to waive the County's governmental immunity in any way and shall nat be construed to waive said governmental
immunity in any way.

FY22 Fees Adopted by R,S. No. 2021-80



X. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for failure of another party to comply
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; by Bannock County with fifteen (15) days’ prior written notice to other
parties; or upon mutual written agreament by ali parties.

Y. Appropriations Clause. Bannock County's obligations under this Application and Agreemant are conditioned upon
the availahility of Funds which are appropriated or ailocated for such obligations. If fundsare not allocated and avalilable
for the continuance of said obligations, the cantract may be terminated hy the County at the end ofthe period for which
funds are avallable. No penalty shall acerue to the County In the event this provision is exetcised, and the County shalinot
be obligated or liable for any future paymentsdue or for any damages as  a result of termination under this provision. Z.
Alteration or Additions. Without the writlen consentof the County, or unless otherwise allowed by this Agreement, the
Applicant shall not make any Improvements to or alterations of the premises, Any alterations or improvements to the
premises made by the Applicant shall become part of the reaity and the property of the County.

6/18/2025
Date

Mason House of Hope Ing
Applicant

Guy Nason
Print Name

F¥22 Feas Adopted by R.S. No, 2021-90



ADDITIONAL EVENT INFORMATION

EVENT NAME: Nason House of Hope Family fun night fundraiser

DATE:
August 16, 2025

TIME OF EVENT: __12pm -7pm
AREA:  Pavillion #2 and championshin fields

ADDITIONAL EVENT DETAILS:
Purpose: To ralse funds and awareness for Nason House of Hope, a nonprofit dedicated to supporting vouth struggling

with mental health and substance abuse through residential care, education, and therapy programs,
Event Highlights:

. Family-Friendly Activities: Bounce houses, face painting, and carnlval-style games to engage chlldren and families.
s Informational Booths: Opportunites to lsarn about Nason House of Hope's mission, services, and how the
community can get Invelved, ‘

’ Food Trucks: A variety of local food vendors offering diverse, affordable options for attendees.

* Tribute Wall: A spedial memarial space honoring youth affected by mental health and substance abuse, fostering
healing and remembrance, :

. Community Support; All proceads will support Nason House of Hope's programs, including a_safe detox center,
accredited schoal, trade education, and animal therapy.

Reguest for Fea Waiver:

Nasan House of Hope s & 501{c}{3) nonprofit organization committed to transforming the lives of at-risk youth and their
families in Bannock Caunty. This fundralser alms to address critical cammunity needs, Incleding mental health support and
substance abuse recovery, while promoting family unity and education. We respectfully request a waiver of the event
center fee to maximize funds for our programs, which serve as a vital resource for local youth, This event will not only rals ¢
awareness but also strengthen community ties, aligning with the center’s mission to support public welfare, \We are
nrepared to collaborate with facility staff to ensure a successful and respectfyl event,

Estimated Attendance: 100-300 community members, inciuding families, locat businesses, and supporters.

Loglstics: Nason House of Hope will handle setup, cleanup, security coordination, and liability insurance, minimizing any
hurden on the facility.

We appreciate your consideration and fook farward to the opportunity to bring this meaningful event to our community,

SPECIAL SET UP INSTRUCTIONS:
Set up shouid be simple, will-need electricity for bounce houses, will utilize a microphone and speaker to
sneak to crowd,

NOTES/DRAWINGS: N e (\1‘)\(\@\/;@9\@ ou;)\f"\v? |
A e, LCoTOC S oot g
Lo waed ko provide k-4 ROl

Lo v e Yoo e leoun P (e 0 9 TS

FY22 Fees Adopted by R.S. No. 2021-90



Ernie Moser  Jerr Houen  Ken Burrock
C.ommissiones Ciommmissioner Comnnssiont

Ist Dastrict 2ud District Irvd Distriet

Bannock County COMMISSIONERS
Ga g 1. Center, Pocatello, 11 85201

Phone: (2 o * Fax:

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are generally held on
Tuesday at 9:00 AM in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the Bannock County Courthouse, 624
E. Center, Room 212, Pocatello, Idaho, or as noticed 48 hours prior  to
the  meeting  at _ hitps.//www.bannockcounty.us/commissioners/.  Agenda times are
subject to change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special
meetings should contact the Commissioner’s Office at 208-236-7210, three to five working days
before the meeting.

E-mail this completed form and any supporting documents to agendarequest@bannockcounty.us by

NOON on the Thursday prior to the scheduled meeting.

Name/Department:

Matthew K. Phillips / Human Resources & Risk Management

Item to be considered/background:
Request approval of Blue Cross of [daho administrative services agreement renewal
for GEM Health,Dental,Vision plan for 2024-25 plan year.

How much time will be needed? Meeeting date requested:
5 minutes 713125

Does this item involve a contract, agreement, external funding application or award
acceptance?

YES NO |:|

Have all supporting documents been included with this form?

YES NO D

List of attendees:

Please include any supporting documents with your Agenda Session Request Form.

Commissioner Office Only:

Date: qJ?? }ZC) Time:




Administrative Services Agreement

Between

GEMPLAN
And

BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO HEALTH
SERVICE, INC.



Administrative Services Agreement
Between

GEMPLAN
And

BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO HEALTH
SERVICE, INC.



REC[TALS AN R A SRR ART RARRLURN AU FEEN YRR R BTN saaRspangIR N [CITYTTA L) non-q’
TERMS LI e Y L T e e P P T Y Y LY TP T LT T RE T T T T [TItY] wanananas n-unnuunnun"u4‘
ART'CLE lluuunuuun-“uunnnunnn-nun"uonu [TITTT] uolnnl!nnlulnn|n4

DefiNItiONS. i rreerseerirmmrersserssssssasanes

tassarire

L L L Ly T T T N P P T TP PRI LRI PP} 4

Responsibilities 0f BCI v s o coresnenes 3

A.

a2 m o n

T o

J

K.

L.

ARTICLE HL.crevurervenses

General Administrative Services. ...

Benefits Claiimn Services. .o
Pre-Setvice and Urgent Appeals. ... ivmvesiiasnennes
Administration of Post-Service Appeals. ........

Run-out of Claims Services. ..o

Prescription Drug Benefits Management PrOBram. ... v
Medical Drug Benefits Management PrOBIAM. .....c..cuie s iessiessi oot esssessrssisonsisisssstsssessinsas
Network Access/AdmiNIStation ..o
Open Negotiation and Independent Dispute Resolution (IDR). ..cverriee

I T T T T T T P T P T e T TP PP P P T T TP P PO PP TP PP ST T P IE

T T TP T T PP PY Y I IT A

Ly T T Y P AT YTV LN T

R TP PR T P LT T YT PR Y TP PRT LY TEA I PRI 1Y

L T T P T T PR T P

LC-TERY- - R - R S T B - S

Provider DIFECLOTIES, .uvcerieraressersirrassissssssssanaisassnsisasamsassssarssass snssnenssanassassssaressssssassessnsasnsnbsneases 9

Prescription Drug Data Collection (RXDC) RepOrting. «..coocvecciiniinsneinvessssinasinmssssacssssssssnen | 0

No Surprises Act Reporting. ........cceveeee

Responsibilities of GemPlan ...

A,

m o0

T om

T0ZETC R

Modifications to Plans. .....c.ueicencren
Plan Instruments... e crrssssies s essansens
SBC and Uniform Glossary ...ccemninen,
EHgibility. ..oonrvimicrirssiansesnronencssesins

Post-Service Appeals. covcicrenisneeinens

External Review......coeueaee.
Financial Liability. ...vsnmsmmessrsssescsninens
Timely PAYMENL, evcnisivessmsscisonsirsssiss

Cure Untimely Payment. .....cocveevveenisnens
Account for Payment of Claims. ...........
Surcharges or Other Assessments. .........
Other Duties and Responsibilities. .........
Run-out of Claims Services, .......cvveerner

Annualized Interest ...

COBRA Administration. ..o

Portal ACCESS,ivviirnerinsresrsnssrmererm e

..................................... SO RVONeY | |
s e ssssnssnsnsssaerens | O

....-...-................-...-..-..----n------.--n.-nu--"-.-u-n--..............I I

SO PO T ORI V.

e R R R R R s rensssenananearen 1 2

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 1



ARTICLE lv L1 1) LLLLLY B RESASR AN DU BRI SETUNS FRER R 12

Effective Date; Agreement Period; Termination....
A, Effective Date; Agreement Period. .o

ITTTTTT TR ) L LT e T T T T R T 12

B, Tl IINatioN. cceenrrsrrersissessesessssssmsesnsnssasssnsavhsssbisavastonsesssssvessenosestonssonstsnsassnssssnsrsrasssarsssnssassassrs | &

ARTICLE V..coonirrnsorniesstsorens S we 13
Subrogation Recoveries; Other Plan-Related Claims and Recoveries........mmmmnnnn 13

A, Subrogation ReCOVENIEs. ....covccmmiisissm e s s assivasss DU UBTT RS K |
B. Other Plan-Related Claims and RECOVETIES. wovrererivrmrereerimseonssesamasiecsensierasisossisassississsssririesss | 3

Dispute ReSolUtion ProCESS.immmmmmmmismimsisississorsmmsisssesmssssosesasssssssssessssssssssssssns 1
General ProVISIONS. ..o s issssssssssissssonss 14
A. Final Authority and Responsibility. .o comimmeemmpeniesssssssssesisossosssrserees |

I M N ICAIION. crreerrirsersesssssnesisssssneassnsbresisasissrssissestorasssibessessbsrrnstoessoratssnasasnsasnnssansessnessons

®

Not an Insurer or Underwriter. ..o vcersirsrsesersrne
AUdits, e s
Changes to Administrative Fee(s .......

0

........................... T T LT TIPS TP T

QUE0T-ATEA SEIVICES. 11visiricsiiinirssssssriessisssssssssasssbesssssssssmanssssnssasstosatsssssossisrasssesertvasnonestossnarmens | 1

PETTOIIANCE. 1eevienireniarrierisasinmsarmmnsensirasstesirbestsessiiesesibssssssbentsrarsinsieasiredtbeb It oA e LA S 1L RS EbERetssma s rsnans paras o)

T o mmo

Recovery of INCormeet PAYMENLS. ... i st isasssssimsessssssss s 23

Governing Law. ...cvvninnen OO OO X
independent Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan... evereesrtee e saenerae s ran s ene b e peasasansra s asnas Sod
Entire Agreemen124
INOHIC. 11 vuervrrarcerriarivesssrenmerassmserensrens ssrensrs s IBRO LA SHIT SRR R FIAS L bE L L 008 b A0 bhA BB rent b eat it saspenssitsnnanabsmsansas senss D)
Severabllity. v i s s s s s ssasasse s s ares 28
Remedies and WAIVET. ...t sisssssmsssiosessesimsssssssseststosatssastssssiassonssssesess o
ANOMEYS FEES. coiiiiirerermrecrreirenrismrensiranisanesiasissans Fer e s ereasasarssanrr e st enasrasnssassasiarsbant s B0F
No Third Party Benefits; ERFOrCement. ..o DT, .

ASSIBIIMIENL. 11ueurrrurereesrensrcsmeranssns isas et ed AR IS B b St s bR BB sR s S s b S pt s g s enes s snass o)

Consequential Damages. ... eessieannes
Maximum Liability. ..........
Modification........ccccevvinin et s R b b s S S S

HEadiNgs. oo sncss e srsns s s st sesmssitrsssess s ssssns s bsas s s s asssensssan s e sresenn 28
CONFACREIANLY. covoirris s erscemsrsiess e e s s s b s s sas bt s s b sane s sbbna b ena s 10 2D
Customer Feedback and Research Data. ..o vcievommsivenmsinnminsisenmssussnassisvensssnsss assrssssessessiar 1

£ <CHPREOTOAZE R -

Force Majeure. ...ovviiviismmemersensrsnssn e P DO TS O POU PO Y
............................................................................................................. SURPRTOY.¥ |
Use of BCINamies and Marks .....oivcieicescoimneracesimimsesessnicssssnsasrssssrssesrasssrasiossrsbsarsrsaend §

N o< R
w
o
2
-
5

10,24 GemPlan Administralive Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 2



AA, PUBLIC AMNOUNCEINENS. tiiiiiirirareirerseibisossrerseresssrsersresssasssassss srernress usabrssbse tisarsassesttibtassuss tibssnsssarel 1
A B, Pl T A ST ANCES 111 0r010otsrersrrnsnreressssss 1nssassnss 1bses s s00020 808 KNI BB 4mres 008 HHISEESHIESHISIAAHA EIARASELIIL PO 0a01 2 T
AC, COUNTBIPAITS, canrrrrararnnssoreressisonsssnstnssnsesistissssssesssisastsresstass sisessassssssessons srmsressiasssbontisessarassatisssssareasod 1
AD. GemPlan State ReqUITEMENTS. ..o neimstimmi s ssssstsss s snsisssssessssssss i seasissssssssssssnsssisansed §
AE. Privacy of Protected Health INTOFMAtioN, weimssmenismsinmmmimsiv o i 28

APPENDIX A ERANRENANSE I NERY FE RSN PR U vismevasma eserearn PORRORE RARRA B SRR AR A AR RN B PR 30

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF iIDAHO ~ CONFIDENTIAL



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Administrative Services Agreement is made and entered into by and between BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO HEALTH
SERVICE, INC., (“BCI™, and the GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES MEDICAL PLAN (“GEMPLAN), a joint powers
entity under ldaho Code Section 67-2328, (“the GemPlan™). BCI and GemPlan may hereinafter be collectively referred to as
the “Parties”, and individually reforred to as a “Party”.

RECITALS

GemPlan is the sponser of a self-insured health care benefit plan(s) (the “Plan(s)”} for participating public agency
(“Members") eligible employees, spouses and dependents {the “Participant(s)”) and has requested and BCI has agreed to
provide general administrative services and benefit payment services to the Plan, in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. The Parties may, from time to time, agree that BC1 will provide additional services described in the attached
Appendix D. The terms and conditions of additional services BCI agrees to perform for GemPlan are included in Appendix
D. The fees and/or percentage of savings charged as compensation for the administration of these services is outlined in
Appendix D.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants comtained in this Agreement, GemPlan and BCI
agree as follows:

TERMS

ARTICLE I
Definitions

For reference, most terms defined in this section are capitalized throughout this Agreement. Other terms may be defined
where they appear in this Agreement, Other terms capitalized but not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning set
forth in the Plan Document,

L. Administrative Services Agreement; This Administrative Services Apgreement, Exhibits, Attachments and
Appendices hereto.

2, Affordable Care Act (the “ACA”): The Paticat Protection and Affordable Care Aot of 2010,

i Alowed Charge: The amount payable for a Prescription Drug dispensed to a Participant based on the
reimbursement formula determined between BCI and its PBM plus a $0.95 dispensing fee for a Prescription Drug
dispensed by a Retail Participating Pharmacy.

4. Benefit Claim: Request for payment for a Covered Service received by Participant.

5, Brand Drug (Brand): a drug with the multi-source code of “M”, “N”, or *O”, or similar equivalent as of the date
of Prescription Drug Claim adjudication. A Brand Drug will not include Prescription Drug Claims for: (a) a drug
or product with a DAW code of 3, 4, 3, 6, or ¢ as of the date of Preseription Drug Claim adjudication; or (b) a
drug or product adjudicated at a MAC price.

6. Claim: Written notification in a form acceptable under the Plan that health services or other benefits have been
rendered or furnished to a Plan Participant. This notification must set forth in full the details of such service including,
but not limited to, the Covered Person's name, age, sex and identification number, the name and address of the
Provider, a specific itemized statement of the service rendered or furnished, the date of service, applicable diagnosis
and the Claim Charge for such service and any other information required by federal law or ACA.

7. Code: The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

8. Covered Services: When rendered by a Provider, a service, supply, or procedure specified in the Plan for which
benefits will be provided to a Participant,

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 4



10.

11,

[2.

20.

21.

22,

GemPlan - is a joint public agency health care plan established pursuant to Idaho Code Title 41, Chapter 41 that is
governed by a board comprised of local elected officials. Gemplan also refers to the GemPlan trust and the GemPlan
goveming board which serves as the board of trustees of said trust.

Generic Drug (Generic): a drug that is not a Brand Drug, including the multi-scurce code of "Y” or similar
equivalent, as of the date of Prescription Drug adjudication,

HIPAA: the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended.

Open Enrollment: Period designated by GemPlan and before the beginning of the Plan Year in which an eligible
individual may enroll in a Plan offered by GemPlan.

Participants: Employees of the Members of GemPlan and their beneficiaries who are eligible to receive a benefit
from the Plan in accordance with the meaning of the term “Beneficiary” under Section 41-4102, 1daho Code.

Plan(s): Self-insured health care benefit plan administered by BCI and maintained by GemPlan for the purpose of
providing health care benefits to Participants, BCI is not an insurer or underwriter of the Plan(s).

Plan Document: A formal written document under which the Plan(s) is established and operated, which may

~ include an umbrella or “wrap document”, andfor o separate Plan Summary.

Plan Year: The calendar, policy or fiscal year on which the records of the Plan(s) are kept,

Plan Governing Instrument(s): The Plan Documents, Plan Summaries, benefit descriptions and administrative
procedures, including a schedule of any changes to these documents, centified by GemPlan to BCI in writing in
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement to be the complete Plan governing instruments upon which BCI
will administer all claims and appeals under this Agreement. To the extent there is any conflict between the Plan
Governing Instrument(s) and the Summary Plan Document, the Summary Plan Document shall be the governing
document upon which BCl will administer claims,

Plan Summary: A summary of the material provisions of the Plan Document provided to Participants of the Plan(s).
Provider: A person or entity that is licensed, where required, to render Covered Services.
Summary Plan Document: A BCI provided description of the benefits provided under the Plan.

Usual and Customary (“U&C™): the lowest price, including any Dispensing Fee, a Pharmacy would charge a
customer without any insurance coverage if such customer were paying cash for the identical drug on the date
dispensed and at that location.

Waiting Period: Period designated by each Member in which an individual must wait before becoming Eligible for
a Plan.

ARTICLE 11
Responsibilities of BCI

General Administrative Services.

1. Provide general administrative service required for the proper performance and delivery of benefit payment
services such as care management, utilization management, medical management via a designated clinician
team, and clinical quality management.

2, Furnish to GemPlan 2 Summary Plan Document, which describes the benefits and programs administered
by BCI. BCI shall administer all claims and appeals in accordance with the last properly executed Summary
Plan Document.

(1) BCI shall modify the Summary Plan Document at the direction of GemPlan, subjeci to the

10,24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement « BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 5



requirement that GemPlan provide advance notice to BCI in accordance with Article 11, Section
B, of any changes to the Plan that may require a modification of the Summary Plan Document.

(2) BCI will not be responsible for the printing, mailing, electronic posting or distribution of the Plan
Document, Summary Plan Description, or Summary Plan Document.

Subject to the notification requirements of Article 111.C, prepare the Summary of Benefits and Coverage

(“SBC”) and Uniform Glossary required by the ACA for each coverage option administered by BCl on

behalf of GemPlan. GemPlan is solely responsible for ensuring that the SBC accurately reflects the

benefits each Member offers.

BCI will be responsible for posting the SBC electronically to BCI’s SBC look-up portal. The fee for SBC

preparation is included in the Administrative Fee. BCI will not be responsible for the printing, mailing or

distribution of the SBC’s. GemPlan will reimburse BCI for any costs incurred with respect to SBC language

translations.

Maintain enrollment and eligibility files, BCI will rely upon GemPlan to provide accurate eligibility and

enrollment information as set forth in Article I1I. BCI will enroll and dis-enrol] Participants at the

direction of, and upon timely netice of GemPlan:

Provide identification cards for distribution to Participants, or as directed in writing by GemPlan  to

specific agencies.

BCI shall prepare and deliver to GemPlan the following reports:

a. a weekly summary of paid claims, which includes IDR claims.

b. monthly experience reporis available on the BCI reporting system for retrieval showing claims
paid and administrative fees.

¢ annual claims utilization reports,
d. information necessary for GemPlan's preparation of annual reports, if requested by GemPlan,
e Additional reports, and an Incurred But Not Reported (“IBNR”) estimate shall be provided in

accordance with the fees specified in Appendix D. Additional reports, data feeds and file feeds

not specified in Appendix D will only be provided upon written request and amendment to the

Agreement,
Upon written request, provide a sample Non-Quantitative Treatment Limitation (NQTL) comparative
analysis report (“NQTL Report™) based on BCI’s most prevalent standard product design. BCI is not
responsible for (i} preparing, maintaining, analyzing, or documenting any NQTL Report for the Plan,
including any Plan-specific terms, services not administered by BCI, specific findings and conclusions,
and the summary analysis, or (ii) responding to any regulatory inquiries regarding Plan’s compliance with
the Paul Wellstone and Pete Domenici Mental Health Parity and Addiction Equity Act (MHPAEA),
including any NQTL Report, unless the Parties negotiate an amendment to this Agreement to add a
statement of wark (SOW) for such services. The services and pricing for such services shall be set forth in
the SOW.

Benefits Ciaim Services.
BCI shall:

Process and pay Benefit Claims on behalf of GemPlan, in accordance with the last properly executed Plan
Document(s) and/or Summary Plan Document on file with BCI or as otherwise directed in writing by
GemPlan. BCI deems a Plan Document to be properly executed when a copy of the Plan Document has been
signed and adopted by GemPlan. In the event there is no properly executed Plan Document or Summary Plan
Document on file with BCI, BCI reserves the right to administer claims in accordance with BCI’s most
standard benefit plan language.

Send Explanation of Benefits (EQI3) to Participants when Lhe claim is processed. EOB’s may be delivered
electronically unless the Participant has requested paper copies.

Conduct necessary investigation and make the initial determination of the validity of each request for benefits
in accordance with determination guidelines provided by GemPlan,

Provide written notice to Participants of the initial denial of a Benefit Claim.

Provide GemPlan with assistance and information in connection with disputed Benefit Claims, which are
appealed to GemPlan for final resolution; provided, however, that GemPlan acknowledges and agrees that
it shall act as the claims fiduciary and any assistance or information provided by BCI as part of the final
claims determination process will be reviewed independently by GemPlan and used solely by GemPlan &
to assist it in making its final determination on the claim.

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agrecment - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL &



D.

BCI deems a Summaty Plan Document to be properly executed when a copy of the Summary Plan
Document has been approved and signed by GemPlan. BCl shall administer all claims and appeals in
accordance with the last properly executed Summary Plan Document on file with BC, [n the event thera is
no properly executed Summary Plan Document on file with BCl, BCI reserves the right to administer the
claims and appeals in accordance with BCI’s most standard benefit plan language or the most recent
properly executed Summary Plan Document on file with BCI.

In the event there are no Plan Governing Instrument(s) on file with BCI or the Plan Governing Instruments
are incomplete, the GemPlan directs BC] to administer claims and appeals in accordance with BCI's most
standard benefit plan language, which shall constitute the Plan Governing Instrument(s) for purposes of this
Agreement until the GemPlan provides BCL in writing complete Plan Governing Instrument(s) in
accordance with the requirements of this paragraph. GemPlan shall provide BCI with no less than ninety
(90} calendar days advance notice of any change to the Plan Governing Instrument(s) with respect to a Plan,
If GemPlan provides BCI with less than ninety (90) calendar days advance notice of a change to the Plan
Governing Instrument(s), BCI will begin administering the Plan in accordance with the new Plan Governing
Instrument(s) as soon as reasonably practicable; provided that BC] shall have no obligation under the
Agreement to reprocess claims in accordance with the new Plan Governing Instrument(s} until ninety (90)
calendar days after the GemPlan certified to BCI in writing the change o the Plan Governing Instrument(s),
BCI reserves the right to review and approve any wrilten description of changes to the Plan Governing
[nstrument(s) if BCl does not believe the schedule of changes provides adequate direction to BCI to
administer claims under this Agreement,

Pre-Service and Urgent Appeals. GemPlan expressly delegates authority to BCI to decide all pre-service and
urgent appeals. BCI shall receive, review and resolve all pre-service and urgent appeals that exhaust all of the
Participant’s internal appeal rights under the Plan.

Administration of Post-Service Appeals. BCI shall receive, review and resolve any first level post-service appeals
by Participants of a denied Benefit Claim. In the event BCI receives a second level post-service appeal, BCI shall
notify GemPlan in writing and provide GemPlan a complete copy of the administrative record, all appeal
correspandence and any additional information GemPlan requests in writing that is relevant to the appeal. Foliowing
the GemPlan’s written notification of its final benefits determination and decision regarding the post-service appeal
to BCL, BCI shall communicate GemPlan’s finat benefits determination and decision regarding the second leve! post-
service appeal to the Participant,

Run-out of Claims Services.

If this Agreement is terminated by mutual agreemem or without cause pursuant to Article 1V, BCI shall,
for a period of twelve (12) months alter termination (“*Run-out Period™), process Benefit Claims for
Benefit Payment Services under the Plan{s} which are received by BCl during the Run-out Period but are
for Covered Services rendered prior to the date of termination. Except for the run-out of claims services
described in this paragraph or except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, all other
obligations of BCI under this Agreement shall cease upon termination of this Agreement.

If this Agreement is terminated by BC! for cause pursuant to Article [V, BCI shall cease the processing of
Benefit Claims as of the termination date, and GemPlan shall thereafter be responsible for the processing
and for the payment of Benefit Claims, including any claims received by BCI but not yet processed by
BCI and not yet paid for by GemPlan. If this Agreement is terminated by GemPlan for cause pursuant to
Article IV, GemPlan may require BCI, for a pericd of twelve (12) months after termination (“Run-out
Period™), 1o process Benefit Claims for Benefit Payment Services under the Plan(s) which are received by
BCI during the Run-out Period but are for Covered Services rendered prior to the date of termination

Upon termination of the Agreement and provided all Fees have been paid, BCI will release to GemPlan or
to a successor administrator, in BCI's standard format, all claims data, records and files within a
reasonable time period following the termination date.

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO ~ CONFIDENTIAL 7



F, Prescription Drug Benefits Management Program,

1.

2,

This disclosure describes how Claims lor Presoription Drug benefits are administered under BCT's
Prescription Drug Benefits Management Program (the “PDBM Program™) and what compensation is paid
for BCI's operation of the Program.

BCI's designated prescription drug benefits manager (“PBM) is responsible for, among other things,
pharmacy network development and management, Claims processing, retail, mail order and specialty
pharmacy service, and rebate contracting and administration in connection with the PDBM Program. [n
carrying out those responsibilities, BCI's designated PBM conlracts with pharmacies to be Participating
Pharmacies under the PDBM Program and handles all interactions with those Participating Pharmacies.
The calculation of Participant liability on a Claim for a Prescription Drug that is a Covered Service
dispensed by a Participating Pharmacy is based on the lesser of: (i) the Allowed Charge; (ii} the
Participating Pharmacy’s Usual and Customary charge; or (iii) any applicable designated dollar
Copayment,

The calculation of GemPlan liability on a Claim for a Prescription Drug that is a Covered Service
dispensed by a Participating Pharmacy is based on subtracting the Participant liability from the lesser of!
(i) the Allowed Charge; or (ii) the Participating Pharmacy's Usual and Customaty charge. The Allowed
Charge may be higher than the negotiated price BCI's designated PBM makes available to BCI for the
dispensed Prescription Drug. BCI will retain any amount by which GemPlan liability based on Allowed
Charge that BCI receives from GemPlan exceeds the negotiated price BCI pays its designated PBM for
the dispensed Preseription Drug. Such excess amounts retained by BCI are part of BCl’s tetal
compensation {or BCI’s operation of the PDBM Program, which includes pharmacy network development
and maintenance and Claims processing with respect to the Prescription Drug benefits under the Plan(s).
BCI and/or its designated PBM has arrangements directly or indirectly with pharmacoutical manufacturers
with respect to Brand Name Prescription Drugs covered under Prescription Drug benefits insured or
administered by BCL. These arrangements allow BCI to receive rebates or other price concessions and/or
administrative fees attributable to the utilization, effectiveness or other parameter(s) of those
pharmaceutical manufacturers’ Brand Name Prescription Drugs in connection with the PDBM Program
(collectively, “Pharmacy Rebates™. BCI will remit to GemPlan on a quarterly basis the fixed percentage
or dollar amount of each Pharmacy Rebate, as indicated in Appendix A, that BCI recsives attributable to
pharmaceutical manufacturers’ Brand Name Preseription Drugs dispensed as Covered Services lo
Participants during the Agreement Period. BCI will retain the amount by which the Pharmacy Rebates
BCI receives exceed the Pharmacy Rebates BCI remits to GemPlan in accordance with Appendix A that
are attributable to pharmaccutical manufacturers’ Brand Name Prescription Drugs dispensed as Covered
Services to Participants during the Agreement Period, as well as any interest earned on Pharmacy Rebates
following receipt and prior to transmission of any Pharmacy Rebate amounts to GemPlan. Excess
Pharmaey Rebate amounts refained by BCI are part of BCI's total compensation for BCT's operation of
the PDBM Program, which includes rebate contracting and administration with respect to the Prescription
Drug benefits under the Plan(s).

All Pharmacy Rebates, attributable 1o pharmaceutical manufaeturers® Brand Name Prescription Drugs
dispensed as Covered Services to Participants during the Agreement Period, that BC] receives more than
twelve (12) months after this Agreement terminates will be retained by BCI, unless the amount of such
Pharmacy Rebates in a calendar quarter exceeds $2,500,00 (“Pharmacy Rebate Compensation Limit”). In
that case, BCI will remit to GemPlan, the amount of such Pharmacy Rebates that exceeds the Pharmacy
Rebate Compensation Limit following receipt and reconciliation of the rebates for such quarter, Pharmacy
Rebates retained by BCI under this paragraph are part of BCI’s total compensation for BCI's operation of
the PDBM Program in which GemPlan participated with respect to the Prescription Drug benefits under
GemPlan’s Plan(s).

G. Medical Drug Benefits Management Program.

1,
2,

3

This disolosure describes compensation paid for BCI's operation of its Medical Drug Bensfits
Management Program (the “MIDBM Program™).

BCI and/or its designated medical drug benefits manager (“MDBM Manager™) is responsible for,
rebate contracting and administration in connection with the MDBM Program,

BCI and/or its designated MDBM Manager has arrangements directly or indirectly with
pharmaceutical manufacturers with respect to Brand Name Presceiption Drugs covered by medical
drug benefits insured or administered by BCL. Those arrangements allow BCT to receive rebates or

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Ageeement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 8



other price concessions attributable to the utilization, effectiveness or other parameter(s) of those
pharmaceutical manufacturers’ Brand Name Prescription Drugs in connection with the MDBM
Program (eollectively, “Medical Rebates™), BCI will remil to GemPlan on a quarterly basis the fixed
percentage or dollar amount, as indicated in Appendix A, of each Medical Rebate that BCI receives
for a paid Claim for a Brand Name Prescription Drug administered to a Participant during the
Agreement Period. BCI will retain the amount by which the Medical Rebates BCI receives exceed the
Medical Rebate amounts BC] remits to GemPlan in accordance with Appendix A for paid Claims for
Brand Name Prescription Drugs administered to Participants during the Agreement Period. Excess
Medical Rebates retained by BCI are part of BCI’s total compensation for BCI’s operation of the
MDBM Program, which includes rebate contracting and administration with respect to the medical
drug benefits under GemPlan’s Plan(s).

4, All Medical Rebates for paid Claims for Brand Name Prescription Drugs administered to Participants
during the Agreement Period that BC] receives more than twelve {(12) months after this Agreement
terminates will be retained by BCI, unless the amount ol such Medical Rebates in a calendar year
quarter exceeds $2,500.00 (“Medical Rebate Compensation Limit™). In that case, BCI will remil 1o
GemPlan the amount of such Medical Rebates that exceeds the Medical Rebate Compensation Limit
following receipt and reconciliation of the rebates for such quarter. Medical Rebates retained by BCl
under this paragraph are part of BCI's total comnpensation for BCI’s operation of the MDBM Program
in which GemPlan participated with rospect 1o the medical drug benefits under GemPlan's Plan(s).

H. Network Access/Administration. Provide access to the negotiated contractual discounts with 1dako physicians
and health care professionals with BCI's proprietary statewide network, and access 1o out-of-state providers
through the BlueCard system. BCl, as part of its network access administration, will communicate to Participants
who qualify as continuing care patients, as defined in the federal No Surprises Act (FLR. 133, Public Law 116-260}
(the “No Surprises Act™), the opportunity to continue their care if their Provider or facility is no longer In-Network
in accordance with the No Surprises Act. Participants must respond and elect to continue to have benefits under the
Plan provided under the same terms and conditions as they would have been covered had no change in the
Provider’s contracting status eccurred, The Participant’s right to elect a continuation of care begins the date of the
notice and ends either ninety (90) days later or the date on which the Participant is no longer undergoing continuing
care by the provider or facility. BCI is not responsible for the performance of any continuing care obligations if this
Agreement is terminated in accordance with Article IV, unless the Parties negotiate an amendment to this
Agreement to add a statement of work (SOW) for such setvices, The services and pricing for such services shall be
set forth in the SOW.

Blue Cross of I1daho will host all public disclosure of In-Network and Out-of-Network provider reimbursement
rates on a public Blue Cross of Idaho web page in the required machine-readable format as required under the No
Surprises Act.

L Open Negotiation and Independent Dispute Resolution (1DR).

GemPlan expressly requests and BCI has agreed to act as its representative for the thirty (30} day open negotiation
process and IDR process established under the No Surprises Act. When Participants access Covered Services
within a geographic area served by a Host Blue, outside the geographic area BCI serves, the Host Blue will be
responsible for contracting and handling all open negotiation and IDR processes with its providers unless otherwise
delegated to BCI by the Host Blue. BCI agrees to provide the end-to-end process for negotiating surprise medical
bills with Qut-of-Network Providers and administering the open negotiation and 1DR process for the Plan. As part
of this function, BCI will determine if the dispute is eligible for [DR based on applicable law, engage the Out-of-
Network Provider in a formal negotiation process, and monitor and administer the negotiation process in
accordance with the required timelines, and support any formal arbitration if invoked by the Out-of-Network
Provider. GemPlan is responsible for funding required claim payments based on the open negotiation or IDR
decision, GemPlan agrees that any payment of arbitration fees and any fees owed to the IDR decision maker will

. be invoiced via the monthly misceilanzous billing and subject to timely payment, BCI agrees to notify GemPlan as
soon as reasonably practicable of any IDR claims BCI directly handles for Edaho Providers.

J, Provider Directories.
BCT agrees to make available an [n-Network Provider direstory on BCI's public facing website for all standard provider
networks and to have response procedures in place for when a Participant asks by telephone or internet whether a

13.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CR0OSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 9



particular Provider or facility is In-Network, as required by the No Surprises Act. GemPlan acknowledges that claim
adjustments may occur if the Provider directory information is incorrect in accordance with the No Surprises Act, At
the end of the Agreement Period or Subsequent Agreement Period, BCI will review all appeals overturned for provider
directory errors and reconcile any amount owed to GemPlan on the weekly claims report. Upon written request by
QemPlan, the Parties agree to negotiate an amendment to this Agreement (o add a statement of work (SOW) for
custom provider directories and custom network arrangements on BCI's public facing website. Any fees associaled
with the creation and maintenance of such custom provider directories or network arrangements will be outlined in the
SOW and billed to GemPlan on its monthly administrative billing,

Prescription Drug Data Cotlection (RxDC) Reporting. Limited to the benefits and time periods for which BCI
was acting as the benefits administrator for the Plan, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the
GemPlan expressly delegates authority to BCI to submit the following RxDC reports and narratives, in accordance
with Section 204 of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 {CAA-21), with the information in the BCI claims
processing system. BCI will report the data in aggregate as supported by CMS aggregation instructions. RxDC
reports and narratives not listed below that are required under the CAA-21 are the responsibility of the GemPlan.
BCI is not responsible for any reporting associated with any Plans, benefits, and time periods for which BCI was
not acting as the benefits administrator.

¢ P2 - Group Health Plan List

D1 - Premium and Life-Years

D2 - Spending by Category

D3 - Top 50 Most Frequent Brand Drugs

D4 - Top 50 Most Costly Drugs

D5 - Top 50 Drugs by Spending Increase

D6 - Rx Totals

D7- Rx Rebates by Therapeutic Class

D8 - Rx Rebates for the Top 25 Drugs

* S

* & @

No Surprises Act Reporting. Limited to the benefits and time periods for which BC! was acting as the benefits
administrator for the Plan, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the GemPlan expressly delegates
authority to BCL to submit the Air Ambulance Data Collection {AADC) reporting and the Gag Clause Prohibition
Compliance Attestation (GCPCA) in accordance with the No Surprises Act. BCI is not responsible for any
reporting associated with any Plans, benefits, and time periods for which BCI was not acting as the benefits
administrator.

ARTICLE 111
Responsibilities of GemPlan

Modifications to Plans, GemPlan shall provide BC] with at least ninety (90) calendar days prior written
natification and detailed documentation of any modifications to the Plan{s) prior to their effective dates. Any
changes to the Plans shall not have an effective date that precludes or hinders required notice to Participants under
any applicable state or federal law.

Plan Instruments. Be responsible for the creation and maintenance of the Plan Document, all notices and
communications required to be distributed by GemPlan and/or the Plan(s) to Participants, including determinations,
drafling and distribution requirements to Participants, and all required regulatory reports and filings.

SBC and Uniform Glossary. Be responsible for (i) providing at least nincty (90) days advanced written notice to
BCI prior to the effective date, with any information necessary for BCI to create and prepare the SBC and Uniform
Glossary that is not otherwise maintained by BCI or based on BCI's standard plan provisions and (i} timely and
properly distributing the SBC and Uniform Glossary to Participants in accordance with the requirements of any
applicable state and federal law.

Eligibility. GemPlan s responsible for determining eligibility and notifying BC] of changes in eligibility or
enrollment at least monthly in BCT's standard file format, or on BCI approved forms. GemPlan agrees to provide
BCI with notification of all employees and dependents who are eligible for coverage under the Plan(s) and those

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Apreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHQ - CONFIDENTIAL 10



E.

who have terminated or ceased to be eligible for coverage, Unless otherwise specifically agreed to in writing by
the parties, such notification shall be provided at least monthly on BCI approved forms.

1. Members may designate a Waiting Period before individuals are eligible for coverage under the Plan.
Any such Waiting Period will be specified in the Plan and will comply with the requirements of any
applicable state and federal laws.

2. Eligible individuals may be enrolled in accordance with the annual Open Enrollment period or other
enrollment periods specified in the Plan and permitted by the Internal Revenue Code and other applicable
law. Any deviation from the eligibility requirements of the Plan must be agteed to by BCI prior to
enroliment of an individual.

3. GemPlan represents and warrants that any eligibility determinations and dis-enrollment directions it
provides BCI will be compliant with and permissible under applicable state and federal law. GemPian is
responsible for compliance with, and will comply with, applicable state and federal law and requirements
related to rescission or retroaclive termination of a Participant’s coverage under the Plan, including but not
limited to timely requests to BCI for rescission or retroactive termination of Participant’s coverage under
the Plan.

Post-Service Appeals. GemPlan (or, if applicable, an employee or committee of GemPlan designated by GemPlan
as the appropriate fiduciary of the Plan) is the sole designated claims fiduciary for the Plan and retains the
discretion to interpret Plan terms and the authority to make all second level post-service appeals of benefits
determinations that exhaust the Participant’s internal appeal rights under the Plan. GemPlan shall review each such
appeal and communicate its final benefits determination and decision regarding the post-service appeal to BCl in
writing at [east three (3) business days prior to the applicable deadline for responding to the appeal. GemPlan is
responsible for compliance with all time periods for notifications of benefit determines as set forth in the Plan
Document,

External Review,

GemPlan will adopt the Staie of Idaho independent review process established by the Idaho Health Carrier External
Review Act, Tille 41 Idaho Cade, Chupter 59 and its regulations and rules (“State Reviewer™) to administer the
review of Adverse Benefit Determination or a Final Intemal Adverse Benefit Determination as defined in 45 CFR
§ 147.136(a). GemPlan understands that if the State Reviewer determines that the service subject to the appeal is a
Covered Service, GemPlan will be required to pay for it.

Financial Liability. GemPlan shall have sole financial liability to pay for claims for benefits described in the
Plan(s), or as otherwise authorized by GemPlan in accotdance with the terms of this Apreement.

Timely Payment. Contemporaneously pay or timely reimburse BC] for Benefit Claims paid using BCI’s own funds,
if any, and otherwise make timely payments for claims costs and administrative fee(s) to BCI as required by this
Agreement. Failure of GemPlan to timely pay the foregoing amounts terminates any performance guarantees agreed
to between the Parties. BCI retains the right to suspend performance of its obligations under this Agreement if full
payment is not made timely. Payment shall be considered timely if made within two (2) business days of the invoice
due date or within two (2) business days after BCI paid claims using its own funds, whichever date is later,

Cure Untimely Payment, GemPlan has fourteen (14) calendar days to cure any untimely payment. If GemPlan fails
to cure untimely payment within fourteen (14) calendar days, BCl may terminate this agreement without further
notice or action.

Account for Payment of Ciaims, Establish and maintain an account in GemPlan’s name at a qualified financial
institution for the purpose of reimbursing BCI for claims paid under the Plan(s). GemPlan shall execute an
Authorization Agreement for Prearrangement Payments {Debits) expressly authorizing BCI to make a weekly
withdrawal from the account by means of an Intermountain Automated Clearing House Association (“IMACHA™)
draft tape or other means for the amount of paid claims. BCI shall contact GemPlan in an electronic format at least
two (2) business days prior to the settlement date indicated on the weekly draft tape submitted to the financial

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF 1DAHO ~ CONFIDENTIAL I



L.

institution for payment and inform GemPlan of the amount BCI shall withdraw from GemPlan’s account,
GemPlan guarantees the account shall contain sufficient funds to cover each withdrawal by BCI.

Surcharges or Other Assessments. Reimburse BCI, as a claims cost, any surcharges or other assessments
imposed by state or federal law on GemPlan’s Benefit Claims,

Other Duties and Responsibilities. Perform all other duties and responsibilities required by this Agreement,

Run-out of Claims Services. For the Run-out of Claims Services provided under Article 11, Paragraph D, pay BCI
the Run-out of Claims Administrative Fee set forth in Appendix A and the cost of all claims for Covered Services
that are rendered prior to termination of this Agreement, except for any claims for Covered Services paid by BCI
before termination that BCI has financial responsibility to pay for under the excess loss coverage, if provided by
BCI, GemPlan shall pay BCI the administrative fee and cost of claims within seven (7) calendar days after receipt
of the statement therefor.

Annualized Interest. BCI reserves the right to apply a twelve percent (12%) annualized interest fee on any portion
of the balance owed by GemPlan to BCI that remains unpaid thirty (30) calendar days or more beyond the original
due date or the date that BCI paid any Benefit Claims using its own funds,

COBRA Administration. Except as expressly provided in Appendix D to the contrary, GemPlan shall be solely
vesponsible and liable for compliance with all aspects of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985,
as amended (COBRA), with respect to any individual who experiences or experienced a COBRA “qualifying event”
under the Plan(s), including all notifications and disclosures, elections, contribution billings, recordkeeping and other
obligations required by COBRA or other applicable law.,

Portal Access. Grant and terminate employer portal access to authorized employees that require access to Enrollee
information, including claims and other “protected health information™, as defined by HIPAA (“PHI™). GemPlan
acknowledges they are responsible for ensuring that the employees granted with portal access only use the portal to
support the administration of the Plan and only as permitted under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Regulations, and
any other applicable state and federal Taws. GemPlan is responsible for terminating employee access to the portal
when appropriate. To the extent permitted by Idaho law, GemPlan agrees to indemnify BCI from and against any
and all claims that may result from GemPlans failure to appropriately grant or terminate access.

ARTICLE IV
Effective Date; Agreement Period; Termination

Effective Date; Agreement Period. This Agreement shall be effective from October 1, 2024 (“Effective Dale™),
through September 30, 2025; such twelve (12) month period being the (*Agreement Period”). This Agreement
shall automatically renew for successive twelve {12) month periods (subsequent Agreement Periods) unless
GemPlan or BCI gives the other Party notice of termination as specified in this Agreement.

Termination. This Agreement may be terminated in accordance with the following:

1. Termination by Either Party Without Cause ~ Either Party may terminate this Agresment, without cause,
upon ninety (90) calendar days prior written notice to the other Party, at the end of the Agreement Period.

2, Mutual Termination ~ Both Parties may terminate this Agreement on any date mutually agreed to in writing,

3. Termination by BCI for Cause - BCI may terminate this Agreement, for cause, upon any of the following

conditions, and effective immediately unless otherwise specified herein:

a. Bankruptcy, receivership, insolvency or inability of GemPlan ¢ to pay debts as they
become due; ot

b. Dissolution of GemPlan; or

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHOQ ~ CONFIDENTIAL 12



c. A dispositive adjudication by a court of law of invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of
this Agreement, which has the effect of materially altering the obligations of BCl in such manner
as (i) will cause serious financial hardship to BCI; or (ii) will cause BCI to act in viclation of its
organizational or governing documents or legal authority, Notwithstanding anything set forth
herein to the contrary, BCI shall give GemPlan written notice of its intention to terminate this
Agreesment due to a dispositive adjudication by a court of law of invalidity or unenforceability of
any provision of this Agreement, and such written notice shall be effective thirty (30) calendar
days after the last day of the month in which it was received by GemPlan; or

d. GemPlan’s failure to cure a material breach of this agreement within fourteen (14)
calendar days of receipt of written notice of the breach from BCL.

e. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article, BC] may terminate this Agreement, without
further notice or action, if GemPlan fails to cure any untimely payment within fourteen (14)
calendar days of payment due date. Such termination shall be effective as of the last period for
which full payment was made,

4, Termination by GemPlan for Cause — GemPlan may terntinate this Agreement, for cause, upon any of the
following conditions, and effective immediately unless otherwise specified herein:

a. Bankruptey of BCI, insolvency of BCI, or revocation of BCI’s certificate of authority by the
Department of Insurance of the state of ldaho; or

b. A dispositive adjudication by a court of law of invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of
this Agreement which has the effect of materially altering the obligations of GemPlan in such
manner as (i) will cause serious financial hardship to GemPlan; or (i) will cause GemPlan to acl
in vioiation of its organizational or governing documents or legal authority. Notwithstanding
anything set forth herein to the contrary, GemPlan shall give BC] written notice of its intention 1o
terminate this Agreement due to a dispositive adjudication by a court of law of invalidity or
unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement, and such written notice shall be effective
thirty (30) calendar days after the last day of the month in which it was received by BCI; or

c. BCP’s [ailure 1o cure a material breach of this Agreement within fourteen (14)  calendar days of
receipt of written notice of the breach from GemPlan.

ARTICLE ¥V
Subrogation Recoveries; Other Plan-Related Claims and Recoveries

Subrogation Recoveries,

Except as expressly provided in Appendix D to the contrary, GemPlan and the Plan have voluntarily chosen to decline
BCI’s subrogation and other party liability services which include processes for the detection, investigation, pursuit,
administration and recovery of claims, liens and other reimbursement interests or opportunities. Accordingly, BCI
will exclude the Plan and GemPlan from all such services and processes, including the issuance of an Accidental
Injury Questionnaire or other inquiry. BCI shall have no obligation under the Agreement or otherwise to take any
action related to the detection, investigation, pursuit, administration, or recovery of any potential or actual
subrogation or other party liability claim, lien or other reimbursement interests or opportunities that may apply to the
Plan or GemPlan, or to otherwise communicate or report to GemPlan or the Plan regarding such matters.

Other Plan-Related Claims and Recoveries, The GemPlan expressly delegates authority to BCI to pursue claims
of GemPlan at BCI's election, which are refated 1o any claims that BCI pursues on its own behalf, including in
class action litigation or federal multi-district litigation. The grant of authority by GemPlan permits BCI to exercise
its discretion in negotiating or approving setilement terms, and determining whether GemPlan will participate in a
settlement, whether to exclude GemPlan from any such settlement and/or whether to also represent the interests of
GemPlan outside the scope of the settlement. In this context, BCI may include the interests of GemPlan in
litigation or settlement discussions, and/or in other proceedings undertaken by BCI to protect BCI's own interests.

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHC ~ CONFIDENTIAL 13



B.

D.

In such circumstances, GemPlan shall be responsible only for a share of fees and costs in proportion to its share in
any recovery, except in such instances where the recovery for GemPlan is de minimis, as determined by BCl, in
which case no recovery amount will be provided to GemPlan, GemPlan hereby authorizes BC) to communicate
with GemPlan concerning issues pertaining to class actions or federal multi-district litigation and specifically
declines representation by class counsel in class actions brought against third parties, [f GemPlan should desire to
participate in a class or multi-district settlement rather than defer to BCl, GemPlan may revoke the grant of
authority hereunder by affirmatively opting into a class settlement and by notifying BCI, in writing, of its deeision
to do so. As used in this section “GemPlan” includes the Plan(s).

ARTICLE V1
Dispute Resolution Process

It is heraby understood and agreed that all disputes which may arise under or in connection with this Agreement,
whether arising before or after expiration of this Agresment, shall be submitted to the alternate dispute resolution
process (“ADR™) set forth in this Article; provided, however, nothing herein shall be construed to include any

litigation or other proceeding filed by BC! in any bankruptey court seeking to [ift the automatic stay or seeking a

. declaration regarding its right to terminate this Agreement.

The Parties agree that there shall be two types of ADR. The Parties agree that they shall first proceed to try in good
faith to settle any disputes through non-binding mediation administered by JAMS with a disinterested neutral
mediator from the JAMS panel of neutrals, or other disinterested neutral individual, as mutually agreed upon,
Either Party shall have the right to commence arbitration if the Parties have not been successful in resolving their
disputes and at least thirty (30) calendar days shall have elapsed from the date either Party informs the other Party
in writing that it has tetrminated the mediation proceedings. 1f either Party demands arbitration, all disputes shall be
resolved by binding arbitration submitted to JAMS under or in accordance with its then-prevailing Comprehensive
Arbitration Rules, in which case the arbitration panel shall consist of three disinterested neutral arbitrators, whereby
BCI selects one neutral arbitrator, GemPlan selects one neutral arbitrator, and those two arbitrators select a third
neutral arbitrator. 1fthe two arbitrators and/or the Parties cannot agree on a third arbitrator within sixty (60)
calendar days, then either Party may request a disirict court judge of the federal district court encompassing Boise,
1daho to select a third neutral arbitrator from a list of six individuals, three named by each neutral arbitrator
selected by each Party. The Parties may mutually agree to waive the right to a panel of three arbitrators and select
a single mutually acceptable neutral disinterested arbitrator to preside over the arbitration.

In mediation or arbitration, the mediator or arbitrators shall have knowledge of the legal, corporate management,
administrative services, health benefits or other issues relevant to the matters in dispute. In the event of arbitration,
the decision of the arbitrators shall be final and binding and provided in writing to both Parties,

In all events, each Party shall bear jointly and equally in the common costs and expenses of any mediation and the
cost and expense of the third arbitrator in any arbitration (or sole arbitrator as applicable), except that each Party
shall bear the costs and expenses of the neutral arbitrator that they select, Either choice of ADR shall be
commenced in Boise, Idaho or other location to be mutually agreed upon. The “Goveming Law” provisions of this
Agresment shall be applicable in any arbitration. Any arbitration and all disputes that may arise under or in
connection with this Agreement shall be governed by, and this Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in
accordance with, Idaho law without regard to its conflict of law rules. Any arbitration award shall be enforced in
the state or federal courts located in Ada, County, Idsho. GemPlan consents to exclusive jurisdiction and venue of
the state and federal courts located in Ada, County, idaho for putposes on enforcement of any arbitration award.
ARTICLE VIl
General Provisions

Final Authority and Responsibility. Unless expressly articulated in this Agreement, GemPlan retains all final
authority and responsibility for all matters relating to the Plan(s). GemPian retains any and all financial liability to
Participants for the benefits described in the Plan(s). BCI is empowered to act on behalf of GemPlan in connection
with the Plan(s) only as expressly stated in this Agreement, which shall include all attachments and enclosures. -

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO -~ CONFIDENTIAL 14



For the purposes of applicable law, the GemPlan shall be deemed the administrator of the Plan(s) as defined in
Idaho Code §41-4102(1).

BCI shall have no responsibility for the compliance of GemPlan with applicable laws governing employee benefit
plans, and GemPlan shall have the sole responsibility for and shall bear the entire cost of compliance with all
federal, state and local rules, regulations and laws, including but not limited to, any licensing, filing, reporting and
disclosure requirements as may apply to GemPlan and all costs, taxes, expenses and fees relating thereto, BCI does
not provide legal or tax advice to GemPlan. BCI is not responsible for compliance with applicable tax laws,
including tax laws governing high deductible health plans. Except as expressly stipulated etsewhere in this
Agreement, BCI shall not be responsible for reporting any information to any governmental agencies or
withholding from any benefit amounts necessary to cover income or employment tax, unless required by court
order or direct request from a government agency. BCI is not responsible for making any determination regarding
whether any funds constitute plan assets under any applicable law or have been handled or managed in accordance
with the requirements of the Plan or applicable law. BCI shall not be responsible for any disclosure or reporting of
direct or indirect compensatlon in connection with any brokerage or consultmg services prowded to the Plan,
unless BCI is the service provider for such brokerage or consulting services.

Except as expressly provided in Article 11, GemPlan will be solely responsible for ensuring the Plan’s compliance
with MHPAEA, NQTL reporting, the determination of what constitutes essential health benefits and the Plan's
status as grandfathered under PPACA, as may be applicable. GemPlan assumes sole responsibility for maintaining
all necessary documentation in support of any claimed grandfathered status.

B. Indemnification. BCI shall, promptly advise and cooperate with GemPlan concerning administrative or regulatory
body, arbitrative, mediative, legal, court or similar actions or of any claims, demands, expenses, costs, losses,
damages, judgments, liabilities, penalties, attorneys’ fees or other fees involving Lhe Plan(s) or GemPlan where BCI
received notice. lmrespective of any excess loss coverage or other provision of this Agreement, GemPlan, to the
extent permitted by [daho law, shall be liable to defend, indemnify, and hold BCI, its officers, directors and
employees harmless against any claims, demands, expenses, costs, actions, losses, damages, judgments, liabilities,
penalties, attorneys’ fees or other fee(s) (“Claims™) that BCT may receive, incur, sustain ot suffer resulting from or
arising out of BCI's reasonable care of the administration of the Plan(s) and/or the services provided under this
Agreement, including but not limited to Claims resulting from or arising out of any act or omission with respect to
eligibility and enrollment data, claims determinations, adjustment and payment of claims, administration of internal
or final appeals, preparation and distcibution of SBCs, rescissions or retroactive tertninations of coverage, and any
action or inaction pursuant to the direction of GemPlan, as well as Claims under or due to:

i. the release or disclosure of any drug, alcohiol or substance abuse or any other data, records, or information
to GemPlan or GemPlan’s agent regarding any Employee or dependent covered under the Plan(s); or

2, anty action brought by the United States Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare
and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) or its successor, or any organization under contract to pay Medicare
claims, including without timitation, Medicare carriers, intermediaries or contractors, or the Department of
lustice or any other organization or agency acting on behalf of CMS pursuing payment for Medicare
claims from BCI based on BCI’s payment, denial to pay Medicare clairs as the primary payer, or
payment of Medicare claims in error for health care ¢claims incurred prior to termination of this Agreement
and paid by BCI before or afler termination of this Agreement; or

3. any action brought by a Provider of services for the nonpayment of a claim in accordance with the terms
of the Plan.

unless it is judicially determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that the liability therefore under this
Paragraph B was the direct consequence of the negligence and/or gross negligence on the part of BCl or
any of its officers, directors or employees. For purposes of this Paragraph B, BCI shall have the right, at
its sole eption and discretion, to select and employ attorneys to defend it in any such action.

Except to the exteitt that GemPlan has a duty to indemnify as described above, BCI shall be liable to
defend, indemnify, and hold GemPlan, its officers, directors and employees harmless against any claims,

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO — CONFIDENTIAL 15



E.

demands, expenses, costs, aclions, losses, damages, judgments, liabilities, penalties, attomeys’ fees or
other fee(s) (“Claims™) that GemPlan may receive, incur, sustain or suffer resulting from or arising out of
BCI’s negligence in the administration of the Plan(s) or services provided under this Agreement, as
judicially determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, and/or gross negligence in the administration of
the Plan(s) or the services provided under this Agreement, including but not limited to Claims resulting
from ot arising out of any act or omission with respect to eligibility and enrollment data, ¢laims
determinations, adjustment and payment of claims, administration of internal or final appeals, preparation
and distribution of SBCs, rescissions or retroactive terminations of coverage, and any action or inaction
pursuant to the direction of GemPlan, unless such direction is contrary to applicable law.

Not an Insurer or Underwriter. BCI is not an insurer or underwriter of the Plan(s) with respect to Participants.

Audits. During the Agreement Period and any subsequent Agreement Periods, and upon sixty (60} days calendar
advance written notice to BCI’s Internal Audit Department, GemPlan has the right to audit the books, accounts and
records reasonably necessary (o verify BCI's performance under this Agreement, subject to the following terms and
conditions:

1. GemPlan may delegate audit rights to its own Congultants, Certified Public Accountants, a reputable and
recognized firm of Certified Public Accountants or other professionals normally engaged in the audit of
third party administrators (“Auditor’), provided such Auditors sign an appropriate nondisclosure
agreement and a copy of the engagement letier between the GemPlan and the Auditor is provided to BCI,

2. The cost of the audit and any other expenses related thereto, shall be borne by GemPlan,
3. A copy of the audit shall be forwarded to BCI within thirty (30) calendar days of said audit.
4, Audits shall be condusted during normal business hours and coordinated with BCI’s internal audit

department. Audits shall be limited to not more than once each Agreement Period. Sample sizes for audits
requested by GemPlan will be determined by GemPlan but shall not exceed the parameters of a statistically
valid sample,

5. The Parties stipulate that all dala and information arising from the Auditor’s employment by GemPlan
including but not limited to trade secret, market sensitive and confidential material, affect the successful
conduct of the business of BCI, and GemPlan agrees for itself and the Auditor, that they shall not at any
time, either directly or indirectly, communicate to any other person, firm, corporation, in any manner
whatsaever, any information concerning matters relating to the business, records, or other business data of
BCI or GemPlan that the Auditor may acquire in the petformance of the audit.

6. Unless mutually agreed to by both Parties, the Auditor employed or engaged shall not directly or
indirectly have a financial, beneficial or contractual or other similar interest in any form or manner as an
officer, director, stockholder, or employee in any insurance company, insurance brokerage, managed care
organization, hospital or professional service corparation, or third party administrator that is a part of or
administrator of any group medical, disability or insurance contractor or self-funded health plan that
directly competes with BCI or any BCI subsidiary companies.

Changes to Administrative Fee(s).

Either Party may request a change to the administrative fee(s) set forth in Appendix A if the number of Participants
is reduced or increased by ten percent (10%) or more, An increase or reduction in the number of Participants covered
by the Plan by ten percent {10%) or more shall constitute a material enroliment change.

No amendment to the administrative fee(s) due to a material enrollment change shall be executed unless all Parties
are provided at least thirty (30) calendar days advance written notice prior to the effective date of the relevant
amendment. Amendments duc fo a change in material enrollment may occur no more fraquently than once per fiscal
quarter during the Plan Year.

10,24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHG - CONFIDENTIAL 16



Either Party may request a change to the administrative fee(s) due to a material change in the risk associated with
administering services under this Agreement. For purposes of this provision only, a risk shall be deemed material if
the Per Enrollee Per Month medical administration fee, as identified in Appendix A, increases or decreases by ten
percent (10%) or mare due to the adoption, modification or the interpretation of governmental laws, rules, or
regulations.

No amendment to the administrative fees due to a material change in risk shall be executed unless all Parties are
provided at least thirty (30) calendar days advance written notice prior to the effective date of the relevant
amendment. An amendment due 1o a material change in risk shall be executed no more than once per Agreement
Period.

Out-of-Area Services.

Overview

BC1 has a variety of relationships with other Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield Licensees referred to generally as
“Inter-Plan Arrangements.” These Inter-Plan Arrangements operate under rules and procedures issued by the
Blue Cross Blue Shield Association (“Association”), Whenever Parlicipants access healthcare seyvices outside the
geographic area BCI serves, the claim for those services may be processed through one of these Inter-Plan
Arrangements. The Inter-Plan Arrangements are deseribed generally below.,

Typically, when accessing care outside the geographic area BCI serves, Participants obtain care from healthcare
Providers that have a contractual agreement (“participating Providers™) with the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield
Licensee in that other geographic area (“Host Blue™). In some instances, Participanis may obtain care from
healthcare Providers in the Host Blue geographic area that do not have a contractual agreement
{“nonparticipating Providers™) with the Hosl Blue. BCI remains responsible for fulfilling its contractual obligations
to GemPlan. BCI payment practices in both instances are described below.

This disclosure describes how claims are administered for Inter-Plan Arrangements and the fees that are charged in
connection with Inter-Plan Arrangements, Note that Dental Care Benefits, except when not paid as medical
claims/benefits, and those Prescription Drug Benefits or Vision Care Benefits that may be administered by a third
party contracted by BCI to provide the specific service or services are not processed through Inter-Plan
Armrangements.

A. BlueCard® Program
The BlueCard® Program is an Inter-Plan Arrangement. Under this Arrangement, when Participants
access Covered Services within the geographic arca served by a Host Blue/outside the geographic area
BCI serve, the Host Blue will be responsible for contracting and handling all interactions with its
participating healthcare Providers. The financial terms of the BlueCard Program are described generally
below,

1. Liability Calculation Method Per Claim ~ In General
a. Participant Liability Calculation

Unless subject to a fixed dollar copayment, the calculation of the Participant liability on
claims for Covered Services will be based on the lower of the participating Provider's
billed charpes for Covered Services or the negotiated price made available to BCI by the
Host Blue,

b. GemPlan Liability Calculation

The calculation of GemPlan liability on claims for Covered Services processed
through the BlueCard Program will be based on the negotiated price made available to
BCI by the Host Blue under the contract between the Host Blue and the Provider.
Sometimes, this negotiated price may be greater for a given service or services than the
billed charge in accordance with how the Host Blue has negotiated with its
participating healthcare Provider(s) for specific healthcare services. In cases where the
negotiated price exceeds the billed charge, GemPlan may be liable for the excess

10,24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 17



amount even when the Participant’s deductible has not been satisfied. This excess
amount reflects an amount that may be necessary to secure (a) the Provider’s
participation in the network and/or {b) the overall discount negotiated by the Host Blue,
In such a case, the entire contracted price is paid to the Provider, even when the
contracted price is greater than the billed charge.

2. Claims Pricing
Host Blues determine a negotiated price, which is reflected in the terms of each Host Blue’s
Provider contracts. The negotiated price made available to BCI by the Host Blue may be
represented by one of the following:

{i) An actual price, An actual price is a negotiated rate of payment in effect at the time &
claim is processed without any other increases or decreases; or
(ii) An estimated price. An estimated price is a negotiated rate of payment in effect at the

time a claim is processed, reduced or increased by a percentage to take into account
certain payments negotiated with the Provider and other claim- and non-claim-related
transactions. Such transactions may include, but are not limited to, anti-fraud and abuse
recoveries, Provider refunds nat applied on a claim-specific basis, retrospective
settlements and performance-related bonuses or incentives; or

(iii) An average price. An average price is a percentage of billed charges for Covered
Services in effect at the time a claim is processed representing the aggregate payments
negotiated by the Host Blue with all of its healthcare Providers or a similar classification
of its Providers and other claim- and non-claim-related transactions. Such transactions
may include the same ones as noted above for an estimated price.

The Host Blue determines whether it will use an actual, estimated or average price. The
use of estimated or average pricing may result in a difference (positive or negative)
between the price GemPlan pay on a specific claim and the actual amount the Host Blue
pays to the Provider, However, the BlueCard Program requires that the amount paid
by the Participant and GemPlan is a final price; no future price adjustment will result in
increases or decreases to the pricing of past claims.

Any positive or negative differences in estimated or average pricing are accounted for
through variance accounts maintained by the Host Blue and are incorporated into
future claim prices, As a result, the amounts charged to GemPlan will be adjusted in a
following year, as necessary, to account for over- or underestimation of the past years’
prices. The Host Blue will not receive compensation from how the estimated price or
average price methods, described above, are calculated. Because all amounts paid are
final, neither positive variance account amounts (funds available to be paid in the
following year), nor negative variance amounts (the funds needed to be received in the
following year), are due to or from GemPlan. If GemPlan terminate, you will not
receive a refund or charge from the variance account.

Variance account balances are small amounts relative to the overall paid claims amounts
and will be liquidated over time. The timeframe for their liquidation depends on
variables, including, but not limited 1o, overall volume/number of claims processed and
variance account balance, Variance account balances may earn interest at the federal
funds or similar rate, Host Blues may retain interest earned on funds held in variance
accoums,

3. BlueCard Program Fees and Compensation
GemPlan understands and agrees to reimburse BCI for certain fees and compensation
which BCI are obligated under the BlueCard Program to pay to the Host Blues, to the
Assaciation and/or to vendors of BlueCard Program-related services. The specific
BlueCard Program fees and compensation that are charged to GemPlan t are set forth in
Appendix A. BlueCard Program Fees and compensation may be revised from time to

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Apgreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO ~ CONFIDENTIAL 18



time as described in section G, below,

B. Special Cases: Value-Based Programs
1. Value-Based Program Definitions:

Accountable Care Organization (ACO) means a group of healthcare providers who agree to
deliver coordinated care and meet performance benchmarks for quality and affordability in order
to manage the total cost of care for their Participant populations,

Care Coordination means organized, information-driven patient care activitics intended to
faciltiate the appropriate responses to a Participant's healthcare needs across the continuum of care.

Care Coordinator means an individual within a provider organization who facilitates Care
Cootdination for patients.

Care Coordinator Fee means a fixed amount paid by a Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield Licensee
to providers periodically for Care Coordination under a Value-Based Program.

Global Payment/Total Cost of Care means a payment methodology that is defined at the patient
level and accounts for either all patient care or for a specific group of services delivered to the
patient such as outpatient, physieian, ancillary, hospital services and prescription drugs,

Negotinted Arrangement |n.k.a., Negotiated National Account Arrangement] means an
agreement negotiated between a Control/Home Licensee and one or more Par/Host Licensees for
any National Account that is not delivered through the BlueCard Program.

Patient-Centered Medica] Home (PCMH) means a model of care in which each patient has an
ongping relationship with a primary care physician who coordinates a team to take collective
responsibility for patient care and, when appropriate, arranges for care with other qualified
physicians,

Provider Incentive means an additional amount of compensation paid to a healthcare provider by
a Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield Licensee, based on the provider's compliance with agreed-upon
procedural and/or outcome measures for a particular group of covered persons.

Shared Savings means a payment mechanism in which the provider and payer share cost savings
achieved against a target cost budget based upon agreed upon terms and may include downside
risk.

Value-Based Program (VBP), also known as Patient-Focused Care, means an ‘outcomes-based
payment arrangement and/or a coordinated care model facilitated with one or more local providers
that is evaluated against cost and quality metrics/factors and is reflected in the provider payment.

2. Value-Based Programs Overview
GemPlan’s Participants may access Covered Services from Providers that participate in a Host
Blue’s Valuc-Based Program. Value-Based Programs may be delivered either through the
BlueCard Program or a Negotiated Arrangement. These Value-Based Programs may include, but
are not limited to, Accountable Care Organizations, Global Payment/Total Cost of Care
arrangements, Patient Centered Medical Homes and Shared Savings arrangements.

3. Value-Based Programs under the BlueCard Program
Value-Based Program Adminisiration

Under Value-Based Programs, a Host Blue may pay Providers for reaching agreed-upon cost/quality
goals in the following ways:

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO -~ CONFIDENTIAL 19



The Host Blue may pass these Provider payments to BCI, which BC1 will pass directly on to
(GemPlan as either an amount included in the price of the claim or an amount charged separately
in addition to the claim.

When such amounts are included in the price of the claim, the claim may be billed using one of
the following pricing methods, as determined by the Host Blue:

0] Actual Pricing: The charge to accounts for Value-Based Programs incentives/Shared Savings
settlements is part of the claim. These charges are passed to GemPlan via an enhanced
Provider fee schedule.

(ii) Supplemental Factor: The charge to accounts for Value-Based Programs
incentives/Shared Savings settlements is a supplemental amount that is included in the
claim as an amount based on a specified supplemental factor (e.g., a small percentage increase
in the claitn amount). The supplemental factor may be adjusted from time to time,

When such amounts are billed separately from the price of the claim, they may be billed as
follows:

. Per Member Per Month (PMPM) Billings: Per Member Per Month billings for
Value- Based Programs incentives/Shared Savings settlements to accounts are
outside of the claim system. BCI will pass these Host Blue charges directly through
to GemPlan as a separately identified amount on the group billings,

The amounts used to calculate either the supplemental factors for estimated pricing or
PMPM billings are fixed amounts that are estimated to be necessary to finance the cost of
a parficular Value-Based Program, Because amounts are estimates, there may be
positive or negative differences based on actual experience, and such differences will be
accounted for in a variance account maintained by the Host Blue (in the same manner as
described in the BlueCard ctaim pricing section above) until the end of the applicable
Value-Based Program payment and/or reconciliation measurement period. The amounts
needed to fund a Value-Based Program may be changed before the end of the
measurement period if it is determined that amounts being collected are projected to
exceed the amount necessary to fund the program or if they are projected to be insufficient
to fund the program.

At the end of the Value-Based Program payment and/or reconciliation measurement
period for these arrangements, Host Blues will take one of the following actions:

. Use any surplus in funds in the variance account to fund Value-Based Program
payments or reconciliation amounts in the next measurement period.

. Address any deficit in funds in the variance account through an adjustment to
the PMPM
billing amount or the reconciliation billing amount for the next measurement
period.

The Host Blue will not receive compensation resulting from how estimated, average or
PMPM price methods, described above, are calculated. If GemPlan terminates, you
will not receive a refund or charge from the variance account, This is because any
resulting surpluses or deficits would be eventually exhausted through prospective
adjustment to the settlement billings it the case of Value-Based Programs. The
measurement period for determining these surpluses or deficits may differ from the
term of this Plan.

Variance account balances are small amounts relative to the overall paid claims amounts

and will be liquidated/drawn down over time, The timeframe for their liquidation depends
on variables, including, but not limited to, overall volume/number of claims processed

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 20



and variance account balance, Variance account balances may earn interest, and
interest is earned at the federal funds or similar rate. Host Blues may retain interest
earned on funds held in variance accounts.

Note; Participants will not bear any portion of the cost of Value-Based Programs except
when a Host Blue uses either average pricing or actual pricing to pay Providers under
Value-Based Programs.

4 Care Coordinator Fees
Host Blues may also bill BCI for Care Coordinator Fees for Provider services which we will pass
on to GemPlan as follows:

1. PMPM billings; or

2. Individual claim billings through applicable care coordination codes from the most current
editions of either Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) published by the American
Medical Association (AMA) or Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS)
published by the .S, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS).

As part of this Plan, BC] and GemPlan will not impose Participant cost sharing for Care
Coordinator Fees.

Valie-Based Programs under Negotiated Arrangemenis

If BCI has entered into a Negotiated Arrangement with a Host Blue to provide Value-Based
Programs to GemPlan’s Participants, BCI will follow the same procedures for Value-Based
Programs administration and Care Coordination Fees as noted in the BlueCard Program section,

For negotiated arrangements, when Control/Home Licensees have negotiated with accounts to waive
member cost sharing for care coordinator fees, the following provision will apply: As part of this
Plan, BCI and GemPlan have agreed to waive Participant cost sharing for care coordinator fees,

C. Prepayment Review and Return of Overpayments
If a Host Blue conducts prepayment review activities including, but not limited to, data mining, itemized
bill reviews, secondary claim code editing, and DRG audits, the Host Blue may bill BCI up to a maximum
of 16 percent of the savings identified, unless an alternative reimbursement arrangement is agreed upon by
BCI and the Host Blue, and these fees may be charged to GemPlan. If a Host Blue engages a third party
to perform these activities on its behalf, the Host Blue may bill BCI the lesser of the full amount of the
third-party fees or up to 16 percent of the savings identified, unless an alternative reimbursement
arrangement is agreed upon by BCI and the Host Blue, and these fees may be charged to the GemPlan.

Recoveries from a Host Blue or its participating and nonparticipating Providers can arise in several ways,
including, but not limited to, anti-fraud and abuse recoveries, audits/healthcare Providerfhospital bill
audits, credit balance audits, utilization review refunds and unsolicited refunds. Recoveries will be
applied so that corrections will be made, in general, on either a claim-by-ctaim or prospective basis. If
recovery amounts are passed on a claim-by-claim basis from a Host Blue to BCI they will be credited to
GemPlan account. In some cases, the Host Blue will engage a third party to assist in identification or
collection of recovery amounts, The fees of such a third party may be charged 10 GemPlan asa
percentage of the recovery.

Unless otherwise agreed to by the Host Blue, for retroactive cancellations of membership, BCI will request
the Host Blue to provide full refunds from participating healthcare Providers for a period of only one year
after the date of the Inter-Plan financial settlement process for the original claim, For Care
Coordinator Fees associated with Value-Based Programs, BCI will request such refunds for a period of
only up to ninety (90) days from the termination notice transaction on the payment innovations delivery
platform. In some cases, recovery of claim payments associated with a retroactive cancellation may not
be possible if, as an example, the recovery (a) conflicts with the Host Blue’s state law or healthcare

10.24 GemPinn Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS QF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 21



Pravider contracts, (b) would result from Shared Savings and/or Provider Incentive arrangements or (c)
would jeopardize the Host Blue’s relationship with its participating healthcare Providers, notwithstanding
to the contrary any other provision of this Plan,

b. Inter-Pian Frograms: Federal/State Taxes/Surcharges/Fees
In some instances federal or state laws or regulations may impose a surcharge, tax or other fee that
applies to self-funded accounts. If applicable, BCI will disclose any such surcharge, tax or other fee to
GemPlan, which will be GemPlan liability. '

E. Nonparticipating Providers Outside BCI Service Area
A. For Major Medical Covered Services furnished outside the state of [daho by a Provider,
Blue Cross of Idaho shall provide the benefit payment levels specified in this section
according to the following:

1. If the Provider has a PPQ agreement for claims payment with the Blue Cross and/or Blue
Shield plan in the area where the Covered Services were rendered, BCI will base the
payment on the local plan's Preferred Provider Organization payment arrangement and
allow In-Network benefits. The Provider shall not make an additional charge to a
Parlicipant for amounts in excess of BCI's payment except for Deductibles, Cost
Sharing, Copayments, and noncovered services,

2. If the Provider does not have a PPO agreement for claims payment with the Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield plan in the area where the Covered Services are rendered, BCI will
base payment on the Maximum Allowance and allow Out-of-Network benefits, The
Provider is not obligated to accept BCI’s payment as payment in full. Neither BCI nor
the Plan Administrator are responsible for the difference, if any, between BCI™s payment
and the actual charge,

B. A Contracting Provider rendering Covered Services shall not make an additional charge to a
Participant for amounts in excess of BCI's payment except for Deduetibles, Cost Sharing,
Copayments, and noncovered services.

C. A Noncontracting Provider inside or outside the state of Idaho is not obligated to accept BCT's
payment as payment in full. Neither BCI nor the Plan Administrator are responsible for the
difference, il any, between BCI's payment and the aclual charge, unless otherwise specified.
Participants are responsible for any such difference, including Deductibles, Cost Sharing,
Copayments, charges for noncovered services and the amount charged by the Noncontracting
Provider that is in excess of the Maximum Allowance.

F. Blue Cross Blue Shicld Global ® Core
1. General Information

If Participants are outside the United States, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin
Islands (hereinafler: “BlueCard service area™), they may be able to take advantage of BCBS Global
Core when accessing Covered Services, BCBS Global Core is unlike the BlueCard Program
available in the BlueCard service area in certain ways. For instance, although BCBS Global
Core assists Participants with accessing a network of Inpatient, outpatient and professional
Providers, the network is not served by a Host Blue. As such, when Participants receive care
from Providers outside the BlueCard service area, the Participants will typicaily have to pay the
Providers and submit the claims themselves to obtain reimbursement for these services.

¢ Inpatient Services

[n most cases, if Participants contact the BCBS Global Core Service Center for assistance, hospitals
will not require Participants to pay for covered [npatient servioes, except for their deductibles,
Cost Sharing, ete. In such cases, the hospital will submit Participant claims to the BCBS Global
Core service center to initiate claims processing, However, if the Participant paid in full at the
time of service, the Participant must submit a claim to obtain reimbursement for Covered

10.24 GemPlan Administralive Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO ~ CONFIDENTIAL 22



G.

Services. Participants must contact Blue Cross of Idaho to obtain precertification for non-
emergency Inpatient services,

Qutpatient Services

Physicians, urgent care centers and other outpatient Providers located outside the BlueCard
service area will typically require Participants to pay in full at the time of service.
Participants must submit a claim to obtain reimbursement for Covered Services,

Submitting a BCBS Global Core Claim

When Participants pay for Covered Services outside the BlueCard service area, they must
submit a claim to obtain reimbursement. For institutional and professional claims,
Participants should complete a BCBS Global Core claim form and send the claim form
with the Provider’s itemized bill(s) to the BCBS Global Core service center address on the
form to initiate claims processing. The claim form is available from Blue Cross of 1daho, the
BCBS Global Core service center, or online at www.bcbsglobalcore.com, [f Participants
need assistance with their claim submissions, they should cali the BCBS Global Core
service center at 1 .800.810.BLUE (2583) or call collect at 1.804.673.1177, 24 hours a day,
seven days a week,

Blue Cross Blue Shield Global Core-Related Fees

The Group understands and agrees to reimburse Blue Cross of ldaho for certain fees and
compensation which we are obligated under applicable Inter-Plan Arrangement requirements to
pay to the Host Blues, to the Association and/or to vendors of Inter-Plan Arrangement-related
services. The specific fees and compensation that are charged to the Group under BCBS Global
Core are set forth in Appendix A. Fees and compensation under applicable Inter-Plan
Arrangements may be revised from time to time as provided for in section G. below,

Modilications or Changes to Inter-Plan Arrangement Fees or Compensation

Modifications or changes to Inter-Plan Arrangement fees are generally made effective Jan. | of the
calendar year, but they may occur at any time during the year. In the case of any such modifications or
changes, BCI shall provide GemPlan with at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of any
modification or change to such Inter-Plan Arrangement fees or compensation describing the change and
the effective date thereof and GemPlan right to terminate this Agreement without penalty by giving writien
notice of termination before the effective date of the change. If GemPlan fails to respond to the notice and
does not terminate this Agreement during the notice period, GemPlan will be deemed to have approved
the proposed changes, and BCI will then allow such modifications to become part of this Agreement.

Performance. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, BCi shall not be liable for any mistake of

Jjudgment or other action or inaction taken in good faith unless it is due to the gross negligence of BCL. BCI shall

not be responsible for any delay in its performance under this Agreement or for any nonpetrformance by BCI under
this Agreement that is caused by or contributed to in whole or in patt by the failure of GemPlan to perform its
obligations under this Agreement.

Recovery of Incorrect Payments. If BC| pays benefits to an ineligible person or pays more than the correct

amount of benefits to a covered employee or dependent, BCI shall make a reasonable attempt to recover such
incorrect payments. However, BCI shall have no obligation to initiate court proceedings or other proceedings to
recover such payments. If BCI is unsuccessful in recovering such payments, BCl will notify GemPlan so that
GemPlan may take whatever action it deems necessary to collect or obtain any such recovery.

Governing Law. To the extent not preempted by federal law, this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
state of 1daho without reference to conflicis of law principles,

Independent Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan, GemPlan, on behalf of itself and its participants, hereby expressly
acknowledges its understanding this Agreement constitutes a contraet solely between GemPlan and BC, which is
an independent corporation operating under a license from the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association, an
association of independent Biue Cross and Blue Shield Plans (the “Association’), permitting BCI to use the Blue

10.24 GemPian Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CR0OSS OF IDAHO - CONFIBENTIAL 23



Cross Service Marks in the state of Idaho, and that BCI is not contracting as the agent of the Association.
GemPlan, on behalf of itself and its participants, further acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this
Agreement based upon reprasentations by any person, entity or organization other than BCI and that no person,
entity or organization other than BCI shall be held accountable or liable to GemPlan for any of BCI’s obligations to
GemPlan created under this Agreement. This paragraph shall not create any additional obligations whatsoever on
the part of BCI other than those obligations created under other provisions of this Agreement.

Entire Agreement, This Agreement and all its endorsements, appendices, exhibits and amendments that are
incorporated by reference herein, contain all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the Parties regarding the
subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive contract between the
parties and supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous oral or written communications or proposals not
expressly included hetein. By executing this Agreement, GemPlan acknowledges and agrees that is has reviewed
all terms and conditions incorporated into this Agreement and intends to be legally bound by the same, In the
absence of a signed Agreement, by making sequential payments of Benefit Claims and administrative fees,
GemPlan accepts the continuation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement until a new agreement is executed,

Notice. Any notice required hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when personally delivered to
the other Party or, in the alternative, three (3) calendar days after depositing written notice in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt, addressed to the other Party at the address indicated on the signature page of
this Agreement, or such other address as either Party may hereafter provide to the other in writing,

Severability.

If any term or provision of this Agreement is determined lo be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such invafidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other term or provision of
this Agreement or invalidate or render unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. Upon such
determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the parties hereto shall negotiate
in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in a
mutually acceptable manner in order that the services and transactions contemplated hereby be consummated as
originally contemplated to the greatest extent possible.

Remedies and Waiver. If either Party breaches this Agreement, the nonbreaching Party shall have all remedies
available at law or in equity. Such remedies shall be cumulative and not exclusive. The rights and remedies under
this Agreement are cumulative and are in addition to and not in substitution for any other rights and remedies
available at law or in equity or otherwise. No waiver by-any Party of a breach of any of the provisions hereof shall
be effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by the Party so waiving. No such waiver by any Party
shall operate or be construed as a waiver in respect of any failure, breach, or default not expressly identified by
such written waiver, whether of a similar or different character, and whether accurring before or after that waiver.
No failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, remedy, power, or privilege arising from this Agreemant
shall operate or be construed as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy,
power, or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right,
remedy, power, or privilege.

Attorneys Fees. If either Party utilizes the services of an attorney or attorneys to enforce the provisions of this
Agreement, the prevailing Party in any corresponding action is entitled to recover and be reimbursed for its
reasonable associated fees and costs | including without limitation, attorneys’ fees. This paragraph shall survive
termination of this Agreement.

No Third Party Benefits; Enforcement. This Agreement is solely between BCI and GemPlan, and neither BCI
nor GemPlan intend to create in any third party a right to enforce this Agreement or any provisions hereof or to
claim losses or damages under this Agreement, This Agreement may be enforced only by BCI or GemPlan.

Assignment, This Agreement may not be transferred or assigned by either Party without the prior written consent
of the other Party.

Conscquentinl Damages. Neither Party hereto will be liable for consequential, punitive or special damages,
including lost profits, Joss of goodwill, or loss of employees.

10,24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 24



S,

V.

- Maximum Liability. In no event shall BCI’s aggregate liability arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether

arising out of or related to breach of contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise, exceed five hundred thousand
dollars ($500,000) or one (1) times the total of the General Administrative Fees paid to BC] pursuant to this
Agreement in the twelve (12) month period preceding the event giving rise to the claim, whichever is less.

Maodification. Except as provided otherwise in this Agreement, this Agreement may be modified only by the
mutual written agreement of both Parties.

Headings. The headings used in this Agreement are for convenience in reference and shall not affect the
interpretation of this Agreement.

Confidentiality. From time to time during the term of this Agreement, either party (as the “Disclosing
Party™) may disclose or make available to the other party (as the “Receiving Party™) nen-public,
proptietary, and/or confidential information of Diselosing Party (“Confidential Information™), whether
disclosed orally or disclosed or accessed in written, electronic or other form or media, that are not known
by and not available to the public at large in accordance with Idaho Code Title 74, Chapter 1 (“Public
Records Law™), whether or not marked, designated, or otherwise identified as “confidential” or
“proprietary”, and whether or not patented, patentable, or protected as an unpublished or published work
under copyright, including: (i) information or intellectual property that is proprietary to BCl, including
any administrative, network, pricing, discounts, claims processing, and/or other information; (i)

" information relating to BCI's business practices, plans, and operations, (3ii) any data or classes of data

disclosed pursuant to the direction of the Plan or GemPlan including any “individually identifiable health
information” or “Protected Health Information™ (or “PHI™) as such terms are defined at 43 C.F.R. §
160,103, and any data received in confidence by BCI from third parties; (iv) any information that would
reasonably be considered non-public, confidential, or proprietary given the nature of the information and
BCI's business; and (v) all subsets, collections, derivatives, adaptations, translations, de-identified data, or
aggregated data involving the data referenced in subsections (i), (ii}, or (iii), or (iv}), above. For purposes
of this provision, any such Confidential Information shared with a vendor or delegate of a party, shall be
treated as if it were provided to the party itself. The parties are responsible for the actions of their vendors
and delegates with respect to their use of such Confidential Information, and each party shall ensure their
vendors and delegates handie all Confidential Information in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
BCI and GemPlan agree that any Confidential [nformation disclosed by either Party to the other prior to
the Effective Date of this Agreement shall be subject to this.

To be exempt from disclosure in response to a public records request, the Parties acknowledge and agree
that all Confidential Information of BCI must meet one of the exemptions provided in the Public Records
Law, including without limitation, trade secrets that are exempt from disclosure to the public under
Section 74-107 or HIPAA protecied information under Section 74-104. The GemPlan shall not voluntarily
disclose BC1 Confidential Information that qualifies for an exemption under the Public Records Law in
response 1o a request submitted under the Public Records Law without BCI's prior writien consent or a
court order. The Parties agree that they will consult with their respective legal counsel regarding
applicable public records requests. If BCI desires to claim a public record (or a pottion of the record) that
contains BCI's Confidential Information is exempt from disclosure under the Public Records Law and
determines that the record or portion thereof should be withheld, then BCI shall hold harmless and
indemnify GemPlan and the counties and its trustees, officers, directors, staff and employees from any and
all claims, costs, domages, penalties, losses, fees (including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by or
awarded against them), and expenses that GemPlan, and said persons incur related to withholding the
record(s) and any related proceedings, including without limitation, those pursved under Title 74, Chapter
1, I¢aho Code, including without limitation, Sections 74-115, 74-116 and 74-117, due to GemPlan’s
denial of request for disclosure of BCI's Confidential Information hereunder. The GemPlan may use legal
counsel of their choosing to defend and/or advise them in any of the actions described above in this
paragraph. The GemPlan may also request that BCI defend the action and will work cooperatively with
BCT in regard to said proceedings. BCI’s obligation to indemnify the GemPlan includes, without
limitation, all related legal costs, expenses and fees incurred by the GemPlan. The above noted obligations
of BCI to indemnify and hold harmless the named entities apply to any appeals related to above

10.24 GemPlan Adminisirative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO ~ CONFIDENTIAL 25



proceedings and no matter the decision or outcome of the applicable court whether it be favorable or
unfavorable, Further, GemPlan agrees that if GemPlan elects to defend itself in the above proceedings,
GemPlan will provide BCI with an opportunity to particlpate and consult in the defense of the same.
Subject to the Public Records Law, the Parties agree they will not, except as set forth in this Agreement, at
any time, make any use whatsoever of any portion of the other’s Cenfidential Information with or on
behalf of any other entity. BCI and the GemPlan each agrees this paragraph shall survive termination of
this Agreement for a period of sixty (60) months thereafter,

BCI and GemPlan each agrees that during its business dealings with the other and for a period of sixty (60)
months thereafier (a) it will protect and safeguard the confidentiality of the Disclosing Party's Confidential
Information with at least the same degree of care as the Receiving Party would protect its own Confidential
Information, but in no event with less than a commercially reasonable degree of care and it will not, except
as set forth in this Agreement, copy or disclose any portion thereof to any third party without the written
consent of the other; (b) it will not, except as set forth in this Agreement, at any time, make any use whatever
of any portion of the Confidential Information on its own behalf or with or on behalf of any other entity.
The Parties are willing to exchange such information with each other and hereby agree on behalf of
themselves, their directors, officers, agents, representatives, employees, subcontractors and any advisers
who may be appointed by either party, on the following basis:

(a) Except as set forth in this Agreement, the Receiving Party shall not disclose to any person who is
not a party to this Agreement, and shall not use or disclose, other than to exercise its rights or
perform its obligations under this Agreement, any of the Confidential Information received. Except
as set forth in this Agreement, the receiving party may only disclose Confidential Information to
those of its directors, officers, agents, representatives, employees, subcontractors and advisers who
have a need to know the Confidential Information and who agree to the disclosure and use
restrictions in this Agreement,

(b} The obligations and limitations set forth in paragraph (a) shall have no application when and to the
extent the Receiving Parly can establish by competent evidence that:

(1 such Confidential Information was generally known or available to the public, through no
improper act or omission on the part of the Receiving Party;

@) such Confidential Information was known to the Receiving Party prior to disclosure under
this agreement;

(3) such Confidential Information was independently developed by personnel of the

Receiving Party who have not had access to such Confidential Information received from
the Disclosing Party;

(4) such Confidential Information was provided to the Receiving Party by a third party
without any restriction on disclosure and without breach of any obligation of
confidentiality to a party to this agreement; or

(5) such Confidential Information is disclosed pursuant to a judicial action, statutory
obligation or government regulations, provided and subject to the terms of this
Agreement, the Receiving Party notifies the Disclosing Party prior to such disclosure and
cooperates with the Disclosing Party in the event the Disclosing Party elects to legally
contest and avoid such disclosure; and further provided that the receiving party takes
reasonable and lawful actions to aveid and/or minimize the extent of such disclosure,

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent necessary to prevent a violation of the gag clause prohibitions
under CAA-21, the Plan(s) shall not be restricted from (i) furnishing provider-specific cost or quality of
care infermation or data to referring providers, the GemPlan, Participants, or individuals who are eligible
to become Participants in the Plan(s), (ii) electronically accessing de-identified claims and encounter
information or data for each Participant on request and conslstent with applicable privacy regulations, or
(iii) sharing the information or data referenced In the preceding subsections (c)(i)-(ii) (ot directing it to be
shared) with HIPAA business associates of the Plan(s), consistent with applicable privacy regulations,

This Section V shall survive termination of this Agreement.

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 26



AA,

AB.

AC,

AD.

Customer Feedback and Research Data. As part of its general business operations, BCI may from time to time
contact participants of the group health plan as part of a customer feedback survey or other auditing measurement to
determine improvement of practices and benchmarking, These surveys will at times be conducted by third party
vendors under contract with BCI that will keep all information obtained from the survey confidential. Any data,
information or methodologies obtained or used to conduct these surveys and audits are confidential and proprietary
and are the property of BCI and/or the third party vendor,

Force Majeure. No failure, delay, or default in performance of any obligation of BCI under this Agreement shall
constitute an event of default or breach of the Agreement to the extent that such failure to perform, delay or default
arises aut of a cause, existing or future, that is beyond the control and without negligence of BCI including, by way
of illustration and not limitation, Acts of God, war {declared or undeclared), government regulation, acts or inaction
of governmental agency, civil or military authority, unforeseen disruptions caused by suppliers, subcontractors,
vendars, or carriers, terrorism, disaster, strikes, ¢ivil disorder, curtailment of transportation facilities, fire, floods,
blizzards, epidemics, pandemics and/or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of BCI {Force Majeure Event),
making it impossible, illegal, or commercially impracticable for BCI to perform its obligations under this Agreement,
in whole or in part,

Survival. Subject to the limitations and other provisions of this Agreement: (a) the representations and warranties of’
the Parties contained herein will survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement; and (b) Article [LE,
Article V. A and B. Article VIL. B, D and U of this Agreement, as well as any other provision that, in order to give
proper effect to its intent, should survive such expiration or termination, will survive the expiration or earlier
termination of this Agreement for the period specified therein. All other provisions of this Agreement will not survive
the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

Use of BC1 Names and Marks. Neither Trust nor the Plan (including any of their agents, representatives, or
subcontractors} will use any brand name, trademark, trade name, service mark, or trade dress, logo, symbol, or
other identifying marks owned by or licensed to BCI or any afTiliate of BCI (collectively, “BCI Names and
Marks™) without BCI's prior writlen consent. BCI may revoke any such consent at any iime and for any reason
upon written notice to Trust. Upon such revocation, or upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Trust
and Plan shall immediately cease all use of BCI Names and Marks.

Publec Announcements, Unless otherwise required by applicable law {based upon the reasonable advice of counsel),
no Party to this Agreement shall make any public announcements in respect of this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby or otherwise communicate with any news media, other than in response to a public records
request and as provided in Article VII subsection V. above, without the prior written consent of the other Party,
{which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed), and the parties shall cooperate as to the
timing and contents of any such announcement,

Further Assurances. Each of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver such additional documents, instruments,
conveyances, and assurances and take such further actions as may be reasonably required to carry out the provisions
hereof and give effect to the transactions contemplated hercby.

Counterparts, This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by
facsimile, email or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery
of an original signed copy of this Agreement,

GemPlan State Reguirements. GemPlan is prohibited under Idaho law from cstablishing, maintaining, providing,
offering, or arranging for coverage or payments for gender dysphoria including surgical treatments or gender
reassignment related services that may be deemed to be Medically Necessary under BC1 medical policy, for all
Employers. In accordance with [daho law, GemPlan hereby notifies BCI that GemPlan must exclude any
transgender or gender identity reassignment services from coverage under the Plans. GemPlan has not relied on
any advice provided by BCI in making this direction.

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Ageeement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 27



AE.

Privacy of Protected Health [nformation, The Parties acknowledge that each Plan is a “covered entity” and that
BCI is a “business associate” of each Plan, as such terms are defined by HIPAA. In connection with its services as
a business associate of the Plan under this Agreement with the Trust (acting on behalf of each Plan), BCI
acknowledges that it will receive or be obliged to create PHI from or on behalf of a covered entity. With respect to
such PHI, BCI will comply with such HIPAA requirements as are set forth in the Business Associate Addendum
{BAA), which shall be incorporated into this Agreement by reference. In the event of a conflict between the
Agreement and the BAA, the BAA shall supersede,

‘The Trust further represents and warrants the Trust and each Plan does and at all times shall comply with all
applicable HIPAA Privacy and Security Regulations, including (i) responding to an individual’s request to inspect,
copy, or amend PHI, (i) providing individuals with a notice of each Plan’s privacy practices for PHI, and (iii)
implementing privacy standards to protect the privacy of PHY (including the designation of a privacy official
responsible for the development and implementation of privacy policies and procedures and a contact person or office
for receiving complaints and providing additional information about the privacy notice, workforce training on privacy
policies and procedures, and mitigating fo the extent practicable any harmful effect that is known to the covered
entity resulting from an improper use or disclosure of PHI). The Parties represent and warrant they have implemented
and will maintain reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect the security of electronic PHI that they create,
receive, maintain, or transmit, up to the point of transmission, regardless of where the electronic PHI resides or how
it is accessed, the Parties and each Plan are responsible for any consequences associated with their respective failure
to comply with HIPAA.

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHQ - CONFIDENTIAL 28



The Parties have executed this Administrative Services Agreement on the dates written below.

BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO GEMPLAN
HEALTH SERYICE, INC.,
By: . By: ‘___/;i—\:—%%““‘——
Title: Title: LHAIH ,
Date: Date:
Address: 3000 East Pine Avenue Address: 7 5/ /715/ Zﬂhﬂb{/ /h/ € -
Meridian, Idaho 83642 Focannd, F> _§320)

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 29



APPENDIX A
TO

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

For purposes of this Agreement Period, this Appendix shall supplement and amend the Agreement between the
Parties. If there are any inconsistencies between the terms of the Agreement including any prior Appendices, and
this Appendix A, the terms of this Appendix A shall control,

Section 1, Administrative Services Fees
The Administrative Fees below may incorporate discounts in exchange for bundling of
services, such as prescription drug administration and stop loss. Notwithstanding anything in
the Agreement to the contrary, BCI has the unilateral right to increase the General
Administrative Service Fee(s) and/or add an additional carveout fee for the termination of any
prescription drug administration or stop loss policy separately issued by BCI.

A, General Administrative Services Fees
s The Administrative Fee(s) per Enrollee, per month are as follows:

s ~“Three Yéar MedlcaIlelDentalNismn Guarantee . SR
T Plgn. Year i Medical/Rx -] Dental - | - Yision ~ -0
Year Jof3-
{current) $41.07 $4.90 $2.56
10/1/24-9/30125
ee Yenr Medica!lelDentallemn Gua“ ntec
“Medical/Rx |7 -
Dental -7 Percent (%) nf Change
NI Vision SR
Year 1 of 3~ Medical/Rx: $41.89
10/1/25-9/30/26 Dental: $5.00 2.00%
Vision $2.61
Year2 of 3 - Medical/Rx; $42.73
10/1/26-9/30/27 Dental; $5.10 2.00%
Vision $2.66
Year 3 of 3~ Medical/Rx: $42.73
10/1/27-9/30/28 Dental: $5.10 0.00%
Vision $2.,66

¢  The Commission is $0.00 per Enrollee, per month.

o  The Administrative Fee for additiona! reports referenced in Article [1, A.7.e. is
waived for the first forty (40} hours of development, programming, and report
generation time, Fees for additional hours will be estimated and provided in
advance as specified.

B. Prescription Drug Benefits Management Program Rebates
BCI will retain 15% of all Pharmacy Rebates BCI receives during the Agreement Period
and for twelve {12) months thereafter for paid Claims for Brand Name Prescription
Drugs dispensed to Participants during the Agreement Period as the Administrative Fee
for the Prescription Drug Benefits Management Program.

For purposes of the Brand Rebates, the following claims are excluded: (A) hard copy
Prescription Drug Claims, including Participant submitted Claims and non-Participating

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF [DAHQ - CONFIDENTIAL 30




Pharmacy claims; (B) Coordination of Benefits (COB) Claims; {C) Prescription Drug
Claims for specialty product brand drugs dispensed under the federal 340B drug pricing
program; {D) Prescription Drug Claims for Limited Distribution Drugs; and (E})
Vaccines.

C. Medical Drug Benefits Management Program Fees
BCI will remit to GemPlan 50% of each Medical Rebate BCI receives during the
Agreement Period and for twelve (12) months thereafter for a paid Claim for 34 Brand
Name Prescription Drug dispensed to a Participant during the Agreement Period,

D. Other Fees, Retention and/or Credits

Financial Settlements, GemPlan acknowledges and agrees that BC] may, from time to
time, enter into financial settlements and actuarially determined settlemenis for claims
with providers for, among other reasons, routine claims adjustments, delayed rate
adjustments, cost rate adjustments.) As such, the outcome of these settlements could
result in an edditional charge or credit being issued to GemPlan during or after the
applicable Agreement Period. The Parties understand and agree that any such charge or
credit shall not result in a corresponding adjustment to amounts paid or nat paid by
Pasticipants in connection with claims relating to the setilement.

Early Termination Fee. In the event GemPlan terminates this Agreement pursuant to
Atticle IV, prior to September 30, 2028, GemPlan will pay a pro-rated portion of two (2)
months of administrative fees for terminating early.

Example:

For a three (3) year multi-year rate guaraniee, if GemnPlan terminates without cause after

year two (2), GemPlan would pay one-third (1/3%), (twenty-four (24) months completed

out of thirty-six (36) month Agreement), of two (2) months of administrative fees.
Section 2. Claims Runout Services.

A, Claims Runout Period

Claims Runout Period shall be for the twelve (12) months following the date of
termination of this Agreement,

B. Claims Runout Administrative Services Fees

The Administrative Fee for twelve (12) months Ran-out of Claims Services processing
is two (2) times the monthly administrative fee per Enrollee, per month, at the time of

termination.
Section 3. Inter-Plan Fees.
A, Qut-of-Area Services

Only the BlueCard Program Access Fee and the BlueCard Program Administrative
Expense Allowance (AEA) fee may be charged separately each time a claim is
processed through the BlueCard Program. All other BlueCard Program-related fees are
included in the Administrative Charges.

The Access Fee is charged by the Host Blue to BCI for making the applicable Host
Blue's provider network available to GemPlan’s Participants, The Access Fee will not
apply if the provider does not participate in the applicable Host Blue's network, The
Access Fee is charged on a per-claim basis and is charged as a percentage of the
discount/differential BCI receives from the applicable Host Biue subject to a maximum
of $2,000 per claim. When charged, BCI passes the Access Fee directly on to GemPlan.

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL k)|



BlueCard Program Access Fees: A BlueCard Program Access Fee may be charged only
if the Host Blue’s arrangement with its healtheare provider prohibits billing Participants
for amounts in excess of the negotiated payment. However, a healtheare provider may
bill Participants for non-covered healthcare services and for cost shating (for example,
deductibles, copayments and/or Cost Sharing} related to a particular claim.

How the Blue Card Program Access Fee Affects GemPlan: Sometimes the Access Fee is
a negative amount, which is known as an Access Fee Credit. Any Access Fee Credits
will be credited to BCI and BCI will pass the entire Access Fee Credit onto GemPlan,

Instances may ocour in which the claim payment is zero or BCI pays only a small
amount because the amounts eligible for payment were applied to patient cost sharing
{(such as a deductible or Cost Sharing). In these instances, BC1 will pay the Host Blue's
Access Fee and pass it along directly to GemPlan as stated above even though GemPlan
paid little or had no claim liability.

The AEA Fee is a fixed per-claim dollar amount charged by the Host Blue to BCI for
administrative services that the Hosl Blue provides in processing claims for GemPlan’s
Participants. The dollar amount is normally based on the type of claim (e.g. institutional,
professional, internatianal, etc.) and can also be based on the size of your group
enroliment. When charged, BCI passes the AEA Fee directly on to GemPlan.

See the Fee Listing section of this Exhibit for the BlueCard Program Access Fee and
AEA Fee and for BCI’s General Adminisirative Fee. The General Administrative Fee
includes all other fees relative to the BlueCard Program. These fees include the Central
Financial Agency Fee, ITS Transaction Fee, Toll-Free Number Fee, PPO Provider
Directory Fee and BlueCard Worldwide Program Fees, if applicable.

A General Administrative Fee encompasses fees BCI charge to GemPlan for
administering GemPlan"s benelit plan. They may include both local BCI's service area
and Inter-Plan fees. For purposes of this Plan, they include the following BlueCard
Program-related fees other than the BlueCard Program Access Fee and AEA Fee:
namely, Central Financial Agency Fee, [TS Transaction Fee, Toll-Free Number Fee,
PPO Provider Directory Fee and BlueCard Worldwide Program Fees, if applicable.

Purchaser Name: GemPlan

Purchaser Base Number(s): 3,607
Effective Date; 2024: Ociober |, 2024 through September 30, 2024

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF 1DAHO « CONFIDENTIAL 32



2024 Fees:

Inter-Plan Arrangements Fees:

BlueCard Program Fees

[Access Fees:

Administrative Expense:
Allowances (AEAs);

CGeneral Administrative Fee:

3.64% fot fewer than 1,000 PPO or traditional enrolled Blue contracts
1.93% for 1,000-9,999 Blue PPO enrolled contracts

1.79% for 10,000—-49,999 Blue PPO enrclled contracts of

network savings, capped at $2,000,00 per claim,

$5.00 per claim professional and $11.00 per claim institutional
(for fewer thant 1,000 PPO or traditional enrolled Blue contracts).

$4.00 per claim professional and $9.75 per claim institutional (for
accounts with 1,000 or more Blue PPO enrolled Blue contracts).

Administrative fees are listed in this Appendix A.

Nonparticipating
rovider Claims
rocessing Fee:

$3.00 pet claim for out-of-network claims,

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 33




EXMIBIT CTO
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

MEMBER SPECIFIC AMENDMENT TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS MEMBER SPECIFIC AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is made by BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO
HEALTH SERVICE, INC.,, (hereinafter referred to as “Blue Cross of Idaho™ or “BCT™), the GEMPLAN, a joint
powers entity under ldaho Code Section 67-2328, (lhe “GemPlan” or “Plan Sponsor™), and BANNOCK COUNTY
(“Bannock County™), a Self-Funded Member of the GemPlan. BCI, the GemPlan, and Bannock County may
hereinafter be collectively referred to as the “Parties”, and individually referred to as a “Party™,

RECITAL

WHEREAS, effective October 1, 2024, Blue Cross of ldaho and the GemPlan, executed an Administrative
Services Agrecment and benefit plan pursuant to the terms of which Blue Cross of Idaho agreed to act as the
administrator of the Plan Sponsor’s benefit plan; and

WHEREAS, Blug Cross of Idaho and the GemPlan agree to certain exceptions and variations from the
Administrative Services Agreement for Bannock County, as set forth in this Amendment; and

WHEREAS, by signing this Amendment, Blue Cross of Idako, the GemPlan, and Bannock County, each
agree to the following terms and conditions of this Amendment; and

NOW, THERFORE, effective October 1, 2024, Blue Cross of 1daho, the GemPlan, and Bannock County,
in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions of this Amendment, hereby agree as follows:

TERMS
The Administrative Services Agreement shall be amended, with respect to Services related to Bannock County
only, as follows:

1. Article 11.D shail be deleted and replaced with the following:

D. Administration of Final Appeals. BCI shall receive, review and resolve any first level post-
service appeals by Participants of a denied Benefit Claim. In the event BCI receives a second level
post-service appeal, BCI shall notify Bannock County in writing and provide Bannock County a
complete copy of the administrative record, all appeal correspondence and any additional
information Bannock County requests in writing that is relevant to the appeal, Following the
Bannock County’s written notification of its final benefits determination and decision regarding
the post-service appeal to BC!, BCI shall communicate Bannock County’s final benefils
determination and decision regarding the second level post-service appeal to the Participant.

2, Article 11LE, G, H, I, J, and K shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

E. Post-Service Appeals. Bannock County (or, if applicable, an employee or committee of Bannock
County designated by Bannock County as the appropriate fiduciary of the Plan) is the sole
designated claims fiduciary for the Plan and retains the discretion to interpret Plan terms and the
authority to make afl sccond level post-service appeals of benefits determinations that exhaust the
Participant’s internal appeal rights under the Plan. Bannock County shall review each such
appeal and communicate its final benefits determination and decision regarding the post-service
appeal to BCI in writing at least three {3) business days prior to the applicable deadline for
responding to the appeal, Bannock County is responsible for compliance with all time periods for
notifications of benefit determines as set forth in the Plan Document,

10.24 GemMan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF 1DAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 34



G. Finanecial Liability, Bannock County shall have sole financial liability to pay for claims for
benefits described in the Plan(s), or as otherwise authorized by Bannock County in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement.

M. Timely Payment. Bannock County agrees to contemporaneously pay or timely reimburse BC)
tor Benefit Claims paid using BCI’s own funds, if any, and otherwise make timely payments for
claims costs and administrative fee(s) to BCI as required by this Agreement. Failure of Bannock
County to timely pay the foregoing amounts terminates any performance guarantees agreed to
between the Parties. BCI retains the right 1o suspend performance of its obligations under this
Agreement if full payment s not made timely. Payment shall be considered timely if made
within two (2) business days of the invoice due date or within two (2) business days after BCI
paid claims using its own funds, whichever date is later.

L Cure Untimely Payment. Bannock County has fourteen (14) calendar days to cure any untimely
payment. If Bannock County fails to cure untimely payment within fourteen (14) calendar days,
BCI may terminate all Services to Bannock County without further notice or action. Termination
of Services to Bannock County does not terminate the Agreement between BCI and the GemPlan
with respect to other members.

J. Account for Payment of Claims. Establish and maintain an account in Bannock County’s name
at a qualified financial institution for the purpose of reimbursing BCI for claims paid under the
Plan(s). Bannock County shall execute an Authorization Agreement for Prearrangement
Payments (Debits) expressly authorizing BCI to make a weekly withdrawal from the account by
means of an Intermountain Automated Clearing House Association (“IMACHA") draft tape or
other means for the amount of paid claims. BCI shall contact Bannock County in an electronic
format at least two (2) business days prior to the settlement date indicated on the weekly draft
tape submitted to the financial institution for payment and inform Bannock County of the amount
BC1 shall withdraw from Bannock County’s account. Bannock County guarantees the account
shall contain sufficient funds to cover each withdrawal by BCL

K. Surcharges or Other Assessments. Reimburse BCI, as a claims cost, any surcharges or other
assessments imposed by state or federal law on Bannock County®s Benefit Claims.

Except as stated here, the Administrative Services Agreement and all Appendices shall remain unchanged. In
addition, since this Amendment is member-specific, this Amendment does not amend or change any terms of
the Administrative Services Agreement, including all Appendices, applicable to any members other than
Bannock County. With respect to such members, the Administrative Services Agreement will be read as if this
Amendment had not been put into effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, Blue Cross of Idaho and the Plan Sponsor have caused this Amendment to be
executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the dale set forth hereinabove.

10,24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL i5



BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO
HEALTH SERVICE, INC.

By:

Title:

Date:

Address: 3000 East Pine Avenue

Meridian, Idaho 83642

GEMPLAN

Title: Ol
Date: 5- ,/ '7 / .-Q\\S’

Address: /8 F5 347,2}{ AE -
R?%W' > &220

BANNOCK COUNTY

By: Jelt H‘EM}AL-\,
.! ) . N {

Title: ( il SH 10N C ol v v

Date: :_Sdu\\a\ 50, 20205
. 3

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 36



EXHIBIT CTO
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

MEMBER SPECIFIC AMENDMENT TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS MEMBER. SPECIFIC AMENDMENT (the “Amendment(”) is made by BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO
HEALTH SERVICE, INC,, (hereinafter referred to as “Blue Cross of Idaho™ or “BCI”), the GEMPLAN, a joint
powers entity under Idaho Code Section 67-2328, (the “GemPlan” or “Plan Sponsor™), and CANYON COUNTY
(“Canyon County™), a Self-Funded Member of the GemPlan, BCI, the GemPlan, and Canyon County may
hereinafter be collectively relerred to as the “Panties”, and individually referred 10 as a “Party™,

RECITAL

WHEREAS, effective October 1, 2024, Blue Cross of Idaho and the GemPlan, executed an Administrative
Services Agreement and benefit plan pursuant to the terms of which Blue Cross of Idaho agreed to act as the
administrator of the Plan Sponsor's benefit plan; and

WHEREAS, Blue Cross of [doho and the GemPlan agree to ceriain exceptions and variations from the
Administrative Services Agreement for Canyon County, as set forth in this Amendment; and

WHEREAS, by signing this Amendment, Blue Cross of ldaho, the GemPlan, and Canyon County, each
agree to the following terms and conditions of this Amendment; and

NOW, THERFORE, effective October 1, 2024, Blue Cross of [daho, the GemPlan, and Canyon County,
in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions of this Amendment, hereby agree as follows:

TERMS
The Administrative Services Agreement shall be amended, with respect to Services related to Canyon County only,
as follows: :

l. Article [1.D shall be deleted and replaced with the following:

D. Administration of Final Appeals. BCI shal! receive, review and resolve any first level post-
service appeals by Participants of a denied Benefit Claim. In the event BCI receives a second level
post-service appeal, BCI shall notify Canyon County in writing and provide Canyon County a
complete copy of the administrative record, all appeal correspondence and any additional
information Canyon County requests in writing that is relevant to the appeal. Following the Canyan
County’s written nolification of its final benefits determination and decision regarding the post-
service appeal to BCI, BCI shall communicate Canyon County’s final benefits determination and
decision regarding the second leve! post-service appeal to the Participant.

2. Article IILE, G, H, 1, I, and K shall be deleted and replaced with the following;

E. Post-Service Appeals, Canyon County (or, if applicable, an employee or committee of Canyon
County designated by Canyon County as the appropriate fiduciary of the Plan) is the sole
designated claims fiduciaty for the Plan and retains the discretion to interpret Plan terms and the
authority to make all second leve! post-service appeals of benefits determinations that exhaust the
Participant’s internal appeal rights under the Plan. Canyon County shall review each such appeal
and communicate its final benefits determination and decision regarding the post-service appeal
1o BCI in writing at least three (3) business days prior to the applicable deadline for responding to
the appeal. Canyon County is responsible for compliance with all time periods for notifications of
benefit determines as set forth in the Plan Document.

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF 1DAHO - CONFIDENTIAL 37



K.

Financia) Liability. Canyon County shall have sole financial liability to pay for claims for
benefits described in the Plan(s), or as otherwise authorized by Canyon County in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement.

Timely Payment. Canyon County agrees to contemporaneously pay or timely reimburse BCI for
Benefit Claims paid using BCI’s own funds, il any, and otherwise make timely payments for
claims costs and administrative fee(s) to BCI as required by this Agreement. Failure of Canyon
County to timely pay the foregoing amaounts terminates any performance guarantees agreed to
between the Parties. BCI retains the right fo suspend performance of its obligations under this
Agreement if full payment is not made timely, Payment shall be considered timely if made
within two (2) business days of the invoice due date or within two (2) business days afier BCI
paid claims using its own funds, whichever date is later.

Cure Untimely Payment, Canyon County has fourteen (14) calendar days to cure any untimely
payment, 1f Canyon County fails to cure untimely payment within fourteen (14} calendar days,
BCI may terminate all Services to Canyon County without further notice or action. Termination of
Services to Canyon County does not terminate the Agreement between BCI and the GemPlan with
respect to other members,

Account for Payment of Claim. Canyan County shall remit the amount due via electronic
payment to BCL within three (3) business days of receipt of a Statement of Paid Claims. BCI shall
fax or email a Statement of Paid Claims to the Canyon County at least two (2) days prior to the
settlement date to inform the Canyon County of the amount due to BCI for weekly claims.

Surcharges or Qther Assessments. Reimburse BCI, as a claims cost, any surcharges or other
assessments imposed by state or federal law on Canyon County’s Benefit Claims,

Except as stated here, the Administrative Services Agreement and ali Appendices shall remain unchanged. In
addition, since this Amendment is member-specific, this Amendment does not amend or change any terms of
the Administrative Services Agreement, including all Appendices, applicable to any members other than
Canyon County. With respect to such members, the Administrative Services Agreement will be read as if this
Amendment had riot been put into effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, Blue Cross of Idaho and the Plan Sponsor have caused this Amendment to be
executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the date set forth hereinabove.

10.24 GemPlen Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO ~ CONFIDENTIAL 38



BLUE CROSS OF IDAHO GEMPLAN

HEALTH SERVICE, INC,
By: By: M—
Title: Title: 18270 .
Date: Date:
Address: 3000 East Pine Avenue Address: Vit qu’LD;/ Ne
Meridian. Idaho 83642_ Poctreneg 15 £220)
CANYON COUNTY
By:
Title:
Date:

10.24 GemPlan Administrative Services Agreement - BLUE CROSS OF IDAHQ -~ CONFIDENTIAL »



National Compliance Update
USI EMPLOYEE BENEFITS |

September 24, 2024

ldaho PBM Law Takes Effect
January 1, 2025

Effective January 1, 2025, Idaho HB 596 will place new requirements on pharmacy benefit

managers (‘PBM") and the plans they service. Idaho joins the growing list of states that have
passed laws targeting PBM practices and prescription benefits. Whether and to what extent the law
may be subject to ERISA preemption will not likely be known until the law becomes effective.

Key requirements of the law include:

= requiring PBMs to register with the state;
® requiring PBMs to pass through 100% of rebates to the plan;

= prohibiting spread pricing, the practice of charging a plan more than the pharmacy is paid for
prescriptions services;

= requiring increased reporting to the Department of Insurance (“DOI");

= requiring increased reporting to plans related to costs for Rx services, fees charged, and
rebates received related to the plans;

= requiring network adequacy standards thatmeet or exceed Medicare part D requirements; and

= continuity of care provisions related to mid-year formulary changes.

HB 596

Under HB 596, plans will be entitled to significant information related to how prescription services
are provided by PBMs. This will include disclosure of:

= the cost, price, and reimbursement information of all prescription drugs;

= all fees, markups, and discounts charged or imposed on pharmacies with which the PBM has
contracted; and

= the aggregate amount of all remuneration the PBM received from a drug manufacturer for a
prescription drug including any rebate, discount, admin fee or any other payment or credit.

In addition to the increased disclosure requirements, PBM contracts will need to include the
following:

This summary is intended toconvey general information and is not an exhaustive analysis. This information is subject to change as guidance
develops US| does not provide legal or tax advice. For advice specific to your situation, please consult an attorney or other professional




= require passthrough pricing where the PBM mustcharge the plan no more than the amountthat
they pay a pharmacy for prescription drugs;

= prohibitspread pricing where the PBM charges the plan more than a pharmacy is reimbursed
for prescription drugs; and

" require 100% of manufacturer rebates to be provided to offset plan cost-sharing and reducing
premiums with any remaining rebates to be used to reduce participant copayments in contracts
that allow the PBM to negotiate rebates.

Network adequacy requirements are meant to expand pharmacy networks and increase options for
covered members to obtain services at pharmacies of their choice. Additionally, network adequacy
requirements often serve to counter a PBM from disfavoring unaffiliated or independent pharmacies
that are often critical in providing services in rural areas. These requirements include:

= prohibiting a PBM from limiting a network to an affiliated pharmacy;
= prohibiting a PBM from limiting coverage to mail-order only;

= prohibiting the requirementthata covered member obtain services from an affiliated pharmacy ;
and

= prohibiting the participation in a network being conditioned on participation or non-participation
in another network.

Additional requirements of HB596 include increased reporting to the DO related to the difference in
reimbursement rates, direct and indirect remuneration, fees or other price concessions, and
clawbacks between an affiliated and unaffiliated pharmacy. Additionally, PBMs will be required to
report an explanation of the reason why any drug was moved or reassigned to a formulary tier that
has a higher cost, copayment, coinsurance, deductible for a covered individual or a lower
reimbursement to a pharmacy.

Continuity of care provisions will require a PBM that implements mid-year formulary changes to
allow a covered individual to continue to have access to the medication at the same cost for up to
60 days after the covered individual is notified of the change.

STATE PBM LAWS AND ERISA PREEMPTION

ERISA preemption exempts self-funded ERISA-covered plans from the applicability of state law. As
medical and prescription service costs continue to rise, there has been increased focus on PBMs at
the state level. Various laws have been passed in different states that have placed requirements on
PBM networks, contract provisions related to pricing and rebates, as well as setting rules and limits
for how PBMs structure their pharmacy networks. Litigation has produced varied results related to
ERISA preemption.

The U.S. Supreme Court held that an Arkansas statute that mostly regulated rate setting by PBMs
was not preempted by ERISA. However, an Oklahoma law that included requirements directly
affecting plan design and administration, as well as mail order pharmacy benefits, was found to be
partially preempted by ERISA by the 10" Circuit Court of Appeals. The state has appealed the
decision to the U.S. Supreme Court. It's uncertain whether the Court will accept the case and
further weigh in on ERISA preemption.

Page |2




EMPLOYER NEXT STEPS

Employers with selffunded plans in Idaho will want to confirm their PBM’s compliance with the new
requirements.

* The provisions ofthe law related to contract requirements and network adequacy appear to be
effective forany contractexecuted, amended, adjusted, orrenewed on or after January 1, 2025.

= The disclosure requirements may be effective January 1, 2025, without any delay. Self-funded
plan sponsors should confirm with their TPAs or PBMs whether and when those service
providers intend to provide the required disclosures.

While ERISA preemption for some of the provisions of the law may be possible, self-funded plan
sponsors should review PBM contracts to determine what changes may be needed to comply with
the new requirements. The law allows for penalties against the PBM for any violation, enforceable
by the DOI.

USI will continue to monitor this issue for guidance related to implementation.

RESOURCES

"  Fortext of HB 596: https./legislature.idaho.gov/iwp-
content/uploads/sessioninfo/2024/leqgislation/H0596 .pdf

USI usi.com/locations

This summary is intended toconvey general information and is notan exhaustive analysis. This information is subject tochange as quidance
develops. USIdoes not provide legal or tax advice. For advice specific to your situation, please consult an attorney or other professional

These materials are produced by USI Insurance Services for educational purpeses only. Certain information contained in these malerials is considered proprietary
information created by USI. Such information shall not be used in any way, directly or indirectly, detrimental to US| and/or their affiliates

Neither US| nor any of its respective representatives or advisors has made or makes any representation or warranty, expressed or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of these materials. Neither USI nor their respeclive representalives or advisors shall have any liability resulting from the use of these materials or any
errors or omission therein. These materials provide general information for the use of our clients, potential clients, or that of our clients’ legal and lax advisors

IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: US| Insurance Services and its affiliates do nat provide tax advice. Accordingly, any discussion of U.S. tax matters contained herein
(including any attachments) is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, in connection with the promation. mark eting or recommendation by anyone
unaffiliated with US| of any of the matters addressed herein or for the purpose of avoiding U S. tax-related penalties

© 2024 USI Insurance Services. All Rights Reserved

Page |3




Ernie Moser  Jerr Houcn  Ken Burrock
C.ommissione CoOfmEss Coonnnission

Ist District 2ud District Srd Distrect

Bannock County COMMISSIONERS
ya I Cente Pocarcla, HD 842
Phone: 7210 ® Fax: (2

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are gemerally held on
Tuesday at 9:00 AM in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the Bannock County Courthouse, 624
E. Center, Room 212, Pocatello, Idaho, or as noticed 48 hours prior  to
the  meeting _at __ hitps:.//www.bannockcounty.us/commissioners/.  Agenda times are

subject fo change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special
meetings should contact the Commissioner’s Office at 208-236-7210, three to five working days
before the meeting.

E-mail this completed form and any supporting documents to agendarequest@bannockcounty.us by
NOON on the Thursday prior to the scheduled meeting.

Name/Department:

Shanda Crystal/Chief Procurement Officer

Item to be considered/background:
Request to discuss 1) potential signature on a contract with Booth Architecture LLC for
design services and 2) a procurement update.

How much time will be needed? Meeeting date requested:
5 minutes 113125

Does this item involve a contract, agreement, external funding application or award
acceptance?

YES NO D

Have all supporting documents been included with this form?

YES NO |:|

List of attendees:

Please include any supporting documents with your Agenda Session Request Form.

Commissioner Office Only:

9:4]5’15

Dat Time:




Independent Contactor Agreement
Procurement Contract Number 2025.011

Project Name: Road & Bridge Roof

Architect: Booth Architecture PLLC

AGREEMENT made between Banhock County (herein "COUNTY™), a political subdivision of the state of
Idaho, and _Booth Architecture PLLC (herein "ARCHITECT"), duly authorized to do business in the State of
ldaho.

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. SCOPE OF WORK: COUNTY engages ARCHITECT to perform the work associated with the
Road & Bridge Roof proposal as set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto.

2 EFFECTIVE DATE: Contract for said setvices rendered from date contract is fully executed
through September 30, 2025.

3. COMPENSATION: COUNTY agrees to pay ARCHITECT for their services rendered under this
Agreament an amount not to exceed the total sum of $49,000.00. The parties agres that ARCHITECT wili invoice
COUNTY for payment under this Agreement for services rendered herein. ARCHITECT verifies that it has
reviewed the scope of work to be performed under this Agreement and agrees that in ARCHITECT’s professional
judgement, the work can and shall be completed for costs within the maximum amount set forth in this Agreement,

4. NOTICES: Any and all notices required or permitted to be given by either party hereto, unless
otherwise stated in this Agresment, shall be in writing and be deemed communicated when mailed in the United
States mail, certified, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

Bannock County Booth Architecture PLLC
Commissioner’s Office Ted Booth

624 East Center, Room 101 340 East Clark Street, Suite A
Pocatello, Idaho 83201 Pocatello, Idaho 83201

Either party may change their address for the purpose of this paragraph by giving written notice of such change
to the other in the manner provide by Section 4 (Notices) herein.

5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP: The parties agree that ARCHITECT is the
independent contractor of COUNTY and in no way an employee or agent of COUNTY and is not entitled to workers
compensation or any benefit of employment with the COUNTY. COUNTY shall have no control over the
performance of this Agreement by ARCHITECT or its employees, except fo specify the time and place of
performance, and the resulis to be achieved. COUNTY shall have no responsibility for security or protection of
ARCHITECT'S supplies or equipment. ARCHITECT agrees to pay and be responsible for all taxes due from the
compensation received under this contract.

6. BEST EFFORTS: ARCHITECT represents that ARCHITECT will at all times faithfuliy,

industriously, and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform to COUNTY’s reasonable satisfaction.
7. FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL PAYROLL TAXES: Neither federal, state or local income

taxes, nor payroll taxes of any kind shall be withheld and paid by COUNTY on behalf of ARCHITECT or the
employees of ARCHITECT. ARCHITECT shall not be freated as an employee with respect to the services

performed hereunder for federal or state tax purposes. ARCHITECT understands that ARCHITECT is responsible

Page |10of5




Independent Contactor Agreement
Procurement Contract Number 2025.011

to pay, acording to law, ARCHITECT's income tax. ARCHITECT further understands that ARCHITECT may be
fiable for self-employment (Social Security) tax to be paid by ARCHITECT according to law.

8. FRINGE BENEFITS: Because ARCHITECT is engaged in its own independently established
business, ARCHITECT Is not eligible for, and shall not participate in, any employee pension, health, or other fringe
benefit plans of COUNTY.

9. WORKER'S COMPENSATION: ARCHITECT shall maintain in full force and effect worker's
compensation for ARCHITECT and any agents, employees, and staff that the ARCHITECT may employ, and
ﬂ'rovide proof to COUNTY of such coverage or that such worker's compensation insurance is not required under

@ circumstances.

10.  EQUIPMENT, TOOLS, MATERIALS OR SUPPLIES: ARCHITECT shall supply, at ARCHITECT's
sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials andlor supplies to accomplish the services to be provided herein.

11. ASSIGNMENT: ltis expressly agreed and understood by the parties hereto, that ARCHITECT
shall not have the right to assign, transfer, hypothecate or sell any of its rights under this Agreement except upon
the prior express written consent of COUNTY.

12, LICENSE AND LAW: ARCHITECT represents that they possess the skill and experiance
necessary and all licenses requlred to perform the services under their agreement. ARCHITECT further agrees
to comply with all appiicable laws in the performance of the services hereunder and shall notify COUNTY ten (10
days prior to cancellation of said license. Violations of statute, unethical behavior, unprofessional conduct, or any
actions which discredit or dishonor the COUNTY may be grounds to immediate termination of this contract,

13.  ANTI-BOYCOTT: If this Agreement has a total potential value of $100,000 or more and if
ARCHITECT is a company with ten (10) or more employees, then pursuant to Idaho Code §67-2346, ARCHITECT
affirmatively states that it does not boycott srael and will not boycott israel during the term of this Agreement. In
tzhis paragraph, the terms “company” and “boycott Israel” shall have the meanings described in Idaho Code §67-

346,

14. CHANGES: COUNTY may, from time to time, request changes in the sarvices to be performed
hereunder, Such changas, and any increase or decrease in ARCHITECT'S compensation, shall be effective only
if they are in the form of mutually executed written amendment(s) to this Agreement,

The party desiring the revision shall request amendment(s) to the terms and conditions of this Agreement in
writing. Any adjustment to this Agreement shall be effective only upon the parties’ mutual execution of an
amendment in writing.

No verbal agreements or conversations prior to execution of the Agreement or requested amendment shall
affect or maodify any of the terms or conditions of this Agresment unless reduced to writing according to the
applicable provisions of this Agreement.

15. FORCE MAJEURE: This Agreement is subject to force majeure, including without limitation,
accidents, acts of God, plague, epidemic, pandemic, outbreaks of infectious disease or any other public health
crisis, including quarantine or other employee restrictions, fire, explosion, vandalism, storm, weather conditions,
orders or acts of military or ¢ivil authority, national emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars, or other delays beyond
the reasonable control of the parties. The ARCHITECT shall not be heid responsible for reasonable delays caused
by such events but shall use reasonable efforts under the circumstances to avoid or remove such causes of hon-
performance. Shortage of availabie labor shall not be considered excusable under this force majeure clause.

16. NON-APPROPRIATION: Expenditures not appropriated by COUNTY in it's current fiscal year
budget are deemed to be contingent liabilities only and are subject to appropriation in subsequent fiscal year
budgets. In the event no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted in any subsequent fiscal period
by COQUNTY for performance under this Agreement, COUNTY shall notify the other party(ies) and this Agreement
shall terminate. Payments under this agreement shall be completed fo the date of notification, except that no

Page |20f5




Independent Contactor Agreement
Procurement Contract Number 2025.011

payment aII be made or due under this Agreement beyond those amounts appropriated and budgeted by
COUNTY to fund payments under this Agreement,

17. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: If, through any cause, ARCHITECT shall fail o fulfill in a timely and
proper manner its obligations under this Agreement, or f ARCHITECT shall violate any of the covenants,
agreements, or stipulations, of this Agreement, COUNTY shall thereupon have the right to terminate this
Agreement by giving written notice to ARCHITECT of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof
at least five (5) days before the effective date of such termination, If this Agreement is terminated for cause,
ﬁROHI;IrECT shail be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work satisfactorily completed

ereunder,

Notwithstanding the above, ARCHITECT shall not be relieved of liability to COUNTY for damages sustained by
COUNTY by virtue of any breach of this Agreement by ARCHITECT, and COUNTY may withhold any payments
to ARCHITECT for the purposes of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due COUNTY from
ARCHITECT is determined. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement and shall not relieve
ARCHITECT of its liability to COUNTY for damages.

18.  TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: Either COUNTY or ARCHITECT may terminate this
Agreement at any time by giving at least thirty (30} days’ notice in writing. If the Agreement is terminated by
COUNTY as provided herein, ARCHITECT will be paid an amount which bears the same ratio to the tots
compensation as the work actually performed bear to the total services of ARCHITECT covered by this
Agreement, less payments of compensation previously made. If this Agreement is terminated due to the fault of
ARCHITECT, Section 17 (Termination for Cause) hereof relative to terrination will apply.

19.  [NDEMNITY and INSURANCE PROVISIONS: As respects acts, errors or omissions in the
performance of professional services, ARCHITECT agraes to indemnify and hold harmless COUNTY, its officers,
employees, and COUNTY-designated volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, defense costs,
liability or consequential damages of any kind or nature arising directly out of ARCHITECT's negligent acts, etrors
or omissions in the performance of its professional services under the terms of this contract.

As respects all acts or omissions which do not arise directly out of the performance of professional services
including, but not limited to those acts or omissions normally covered by general and automobile liability insurance,
ARCHITECT agrees to indemnify, defend (at COUNTY's option), and hold harmless COUNTY, its officers, agents,
employees, representatives, and volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, defense costs, liability,
or consequential damages of any kind or nature arisingf out of or in connection with ARCHITECT's {or
ARCHITECT’s subcontractors, if any) performance or failure to perform, under the terms of this contract: excepting
those which arise out of the sole negligence of COUNTY.

Without limiting COUNTY’s right to Indemnification, itis agreed that ARCHITECT shall secure prior to commencing
?ny activities under this Agreement, and maintain during the term of this Agreement, insurance coverage as
ollows:

1. Worker's compensation and Employer's Liability insurance as required by |daho statutes.

2. Comprehensive general liability insurance or commercial general liability insurance, including coverage
for premises and operations, contractyal liability, personal injury liability, products/completed operations
liability, broad-form property damage (if applicable) and independent contractor's liability (if applicable),
in an amount of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence, combined single limit,
written on an occurrence form.

3. Comprehensive automobile liability coverage including, as applicable, owned, non-owned and hired
autos, in an amount of not iess than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence, combined single
limit, written on an occurrence form.

4. Professional liability insurance covera}ge, including contractual fiability, in an amount not less than One

Million Dollars {$1,000,000.00), and ARCHITECT shall maintain such coverage for at least four (4) years
from the termination of this Agreement; and during this four- year period, ARCHITECT shall use

Page |30f5




Independent Contactor Agreement

Nams Procurement Contract Number 2025.011
ARCHITECT’s best efforts to ensure that there is ho change of the retroactive date on this insurance
coverage.

COUNTY Is hereby authorized to reduce the requirements set forth above in the event hefshe determines that
such reduction is in COUNTY’s best interest.

Each insurance policy required by this Agresment shall contain the foliowing clauses:

1. This insurance shall not be canceled, limited in Scope or coverage, or non-renewed untll after thirty (30)
days prior written notice has been given to the Auditing Department of COUNTY. -

2. |tis agreed that any insurance maintained by COUNTY shall apply in excess of and not contribute with
insurance provided by this policy.

Each insurance policy required by this Agreement, excepting policies for worker's compensation and professional
liability, shall contain the following clause:

COUNTY, its officers, agents, employees, representatives and volunteers are added as additional
insureds as respects operations and activities of, or on behalf of, the named insured, Eerformed under
contract with COUNTY. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, ARCHITECT shall daliver
to COUNTY insurance certificates confirming the existence of the insurance required by this Agreement,
and including the applicable clauses referenced above. Also, within thirty (30) days of the execution date
of this Agreement, ARCHITECT shall provide to COUNTY endorsements to the above-required policies,
which add to these policies the applicable clauses referenced above. Said endorsements shall be signed
b% an authorized _rcg)resentative of the insurance comgany and shall include the signature’s company
arfiliation and title. Should it be deemed necessary by COUNTY, it shall be ARCHITECT's responsibility
to see that COUNTY receives documentation acceptable to COUNTY which sustains that the individual
signing said endorsements is indeed authorized to do so by the insurance company, Also, COUNTY has
the right to demand, arnd to receive within a reasonable time pericd, copies of any insurance policies
required under this Agreement.

In addition to any other remedies COUNTY may have if ARCHITECT fails to provide or maintain any insurance
policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, COUNTY may, at its sole option:

1. Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums for such insurance from any
sums due under the Agreement.

2. Order ARCHITECT to stop work under this Agreement and/or withhold any payment(s) which become
ﬂue to ARCHITECT hereunder until ARCHITECT demonstrates compliance with the requirements
ereof,

3. Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to other remedies COUNTY may have and is
not the exclusive remedy for ARCHITECT’s failure to maintain insurance or secure appropriate endorsements.

Nothing herein contained shall be construed as limiting in any wa{ the extent to which ARCHITECT may be held
responsible for payments of damages to persons or property resulting from ARCHITECTs, or its subcontractor's,
performance of the work covered under this Agreement.

If ARCHITECT maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, COUNTY is entitled to coverage for the
higher iimits maintained by ARCHITECT. Any insurance proceeds in excess of the specified limits and coverage
required, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to the COUNTY. No representation is made
that the minimums shown above are sufficient to cover the indemnity or other obligations of the ARCHITECT
under this Agreement.

20. NONWAIVER: Failure of either party to exercise any of the rights under their Agreement, or
breach thereof, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such right or a waiver of any subsequent breach.

Page |40fs




Independent Contactor Agreement
Procurement Contract Number 2025.01 1

21. CHOICE OF LAW: The parties have executed and delivered this Agreement in the County of
Bannock, State of Idaho. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, enforceability, or interpretation
of the Agreement. Bannock County shall be the venue for any action or proceeding, in law or equity that may be
brought in connection with this Agreement. Any dispute under this Agreement, or related to this Agreement, shall
be decided in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.

22, CONFLICTS IN THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS: The Agreement documents are intended to
be complementary and interpreted in harmony so as to avoid conflict. In the event of conflict in the Agreement
documents, the parties agree that the document providing the highest quality and level of services to the County
shall supersede any inconsistent term in these documents.

23. SEVERABILITY: If any part of this Agreement is held unenforceable, the remaining portions of
the Agreement will nevertheless remain in full force and effect,

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This is the entire Agreement, including any exhibits referenced,
between the parties and there are no inducements, promises, terms, conditions, or obligations made or entered
into by COUNTY or ARCHITECT other than those contained in it. Parties acknowledge this Agreement can only
be modified or amended in writing by the parties.

25, ATTORNEY FEES: Reasonable attorney fees shall be awarded to the prevailing party in any
action to enforce this Agreement or to declare forfeiture or termination of this Agreement.

26. SIGNATURE AUTHORITY: The parties executing this Agreement certify that they have the
proper authority to bind their respective entities to all terms and conditions set forth in this agreement.

DATED this <’ dayof - "~ 2025

COUNTY: ARCHITECT:

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Ernie Moser, Commissioner (Name)

L)

Its_Cestuizs
Jeff Hough, Chairman (Title or Office)

Ken Bullock, Commissioner
WITNESS:

( Sighétﬁre of Witness or Notary Public)
ATTEST:

Clerk of Bannock County

Page |50f5




Exhibit A
340 E. Clark St., Ste. A, Pocatello, fdaho 83201

P 208.233.4548 | C 208.251.5917 | F 208.233.0265
www.bootharchitecture.com

May 28, 2025

Shanda Crystal, Chief Procurement Officer

Bannock County Facilities
Bannock County, Idaho

Re;  Road and Bridge Reroof.

Thank you for the opportunity to work with you on this project. Please find the fee proposal

hased the proposal on the following.

» Create existing and reroofing plans based on field observations.

» New reroofing documents to include roof plan of approximately 16,500 square foot
building as well as roofing details and notes.

¢ Structural engineering has been omitted as it does not appear necessary. This can be

added if necessary.

For these services, | propose a fixed fee of 5% reroofing construction cost not to exceed $49,000.
Documents will be delivered in electronic format for email distribution.

We look forward to working with you on this project. Please contact me with any questions of

concerns.

Thank You

Ted Booth, Architect, AlA
Booth Architecture PLLC

Accepted by;

Architect

Name: Ted Booth

Signature: »M(::/—/}::w’/ T

Date: S s ,;:ff,‘,.)..

QOwner
Name:

Signature:

Date:




Bids in progress Active Bids Closed Bids Projects in progress Projects Completed
7/3/2025 3 0 14 0 14
Active Department Description Budget Allocated Status Update Procurement Metrics
In Progress Facilities Janitorial Services FY26/27 7/2 Begin drafting RFP
In Progress Landfill Scale House Project S 7/1 sent to legal for review
In Progress Public Works Engineer Pool Team is reviewing possibilities for
ways to award contract
No Ambulance (3) Power Load Devices 201,691 5/12 sent draft to dept for review; 5/9 received
final estimate; 5/2 sent a contract use for to
dept for review
No Road & Bridge Chip Seal Aggregate 200,000 5/1 Bids open & under advisement; 4/30 bids
are due; 4/4 bid goes live
No Road & Bridge Road Striping & Paint 320,000 4/25 BOCC awarded contract to Idaho Traffic
Safety
No Road & Bridge Road Qil 713,255 4/14 approved piggyback PCHD contract with
Idaho Asphalt Supply
No Detention Center Diesel Generator/Fuel Tank 300,000 4/10 approved piggyback Sourcewell contract
Project total with Western States
No Road & Bridge Hot Mix Asphalt 742,500 4/14 approved piggyback City of Pocatello
contract with Mickelsen Construction, Inc
No Detention Center Diesel Generator Installation 300,000 3/27 BOCC awarded contract to Pro Builders
Project total
No Road & Bridge Magnesium Chloride 170,000 3/7 approved piggyback PCHD contract with

* Project in progress

Road Solutions, LLC




Ernie Moser  Jerr lloucn  KEN BuLrock
Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner

Ist District Ind Dustrict 3rd District

Bannock County COMMISSIONERS
624 E. Center, Pocatello, ID 83201
Phone: (208) 236-7210 ® Fax: (208) 252-75063

Business Meeting Agenda Request Form

The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are generally held on Tuesday at 9:15 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the
Bannock County Courthouse, Room 212; 624 E Center Pocatello, Idaho or as noticed 48 hours prior to the meeting

at https://bannockcounty.us/commissioners/. The Commissioners afso hold meetings throughout the week as coordinated with the Commissioners’
staff. Agenda times are subject to change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in public

meetings should contact the Commissioners’ Office at 208-236-7210, three to five working days before the meeting.

Requestor Name:

Kristi Klauser

Department:
Auditing

Requestor Email:
kristik@bannockcounty.gov

Item(s) to be considered:

Fiscal Year 2026 Budget Recap

Date of meeting being requested: Time requested:
07/03/2025 5 Minutes

Does the request involve a contract, agreement, external funding, or award acceptance?
No
Contract/Agreement Begin Date: Contract/Agreement End Date:

List of additional attendees:



	july 3
	73.pdf

